Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. **Standard Operating Policies & Procedures**

(Revised June 3, 2022)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction		1
Funds		2
Fund Types	2	
Endowed Funds	2	
Holding Funds	4	
Development Funds (Program Support Funds)		
Pass-Through Funds		
Grants		
Student Loan Funds		
Initiative Funds		
Operating Funds		0
Fee Structure		8
Earnings on Invested Funds		
Fee Charges.		1.0
Fund Reporting		
Budget Process		11
Pre-Approval		
Deposit of Funds		
Fund Receipts		1.0
Development Fund Revenue		
Acknowledgment Procedures		14
Tender		14
Expenditure Guidelines and Procedures		18
Travel		19
Salaries		20
Goods and Services		
Definitions		
Advances		
Miscellaneous Items		
Acceptable Expenditures		
Non Reimbursable Expenditures.		
Inventory Control		
Gifts-in-Kind Donated to the University		26
Employment Practices		

Investment Policy Statement			29
Preface to the Investment Policy			
Investment Statement			
Authority of Implementing the Investment Policy		29	
General Investment Objectives		30	
General Risk Parameters		34	
Liquidity		34	
Diversification			
Investment Restriction/Prohibitions			
Review and Evaluation			
Asset Allocation Guidelines			
Spending Policy			
Charitable contribution Policy Procedures			39
Preface to the Charitable contribution Policy			
Policy Statement			
Methods of Giving			
Recognition of Charitable contributions			
Unrestricted and Restricted Endowed Funds/Programs		41	
Naming Opportunities			
Special Programmatic Naming Opportunities			
Naming Opportunities within existing facilities	41		
Cash Charitable Contribution			
Charitable Contributions by Check			
Charitable Contributions by Credit Card			
Charitable Contributions by Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT)		4.4	
Charitable Contributions of Securities and Methods of Delivery			
Non-Traditional Investments		45	
Real Estate		45	
Tangible Personal Property/Gifts-In-Kind		46	
Planned Giving			48
Bequest in Will			
Designating the Purpose of a Bequest			
Sample Bequest Language	50		
Charitable Contributions that Provide a Beneficiary Payment		51	
Charitable Gift Annuity	51		
Deferred Gift Annuity	51		
Charitable Remainder Unitrust			
Charitable Remainder Annuity Trust			
Charitable Lead Trust			
Charitable Contributions of Life Insurance			
Charitable Contribution of a Remainder Interest in a Personal Residence or Farm			
Awards			54
Pinnacle Award			
Final Approval, Acceptance, and Execution by the FSUF			
Public Information Policy			57
Release of Information		57	

Confidentiality of Information	57
Periodic Reassessment of the Policy	58
Contingency Clause	
Conflict of Interest Statement	
Conflict of Interest Disclosure (FORM)	62
Annual Certification Statement (FORM)	68
Trustee Background Affirmation Statement (FORM)	70
Annual Consent Form (FORM)	72
Whistle Blower Policy	73
Document Retention Policy	75
Appendix	
A. New Fund Form (FORM)	81
B. Authorization to Pay (FORM)	83
C. Authorization to Deposit (FORM)	
D. Expenditure Expense Form (FORM)	
E. Travel Expense Form (FORM)	86

*****Introduction

The Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. (Foundation or FSUF) was created in 1970 with the primary purpose of fostering, encouraging, and promoting the growth, progress, and general welfare of Frostburg State University (FSU or University).

The Board of Directors is a volunteer body comprised of between 10 to 40 alumni, University, and civic leaders who work to establish priority areas of support to the University. The Foundation manages an endowment and other funds which are generated through contributions and fundraising projects for use in scholarships, grants, research projects, cultural events, and other worthy support programs.

Note: The FSUF will not entertain affinity or other programs that require or suggest a special or preferential relationship with an individual, service provider, business, or other entity. The FSUF and the University Advancement Office are to focus exclusively on those fundraising activities that secure fully tax-deductible charitable contributions.

***FUNDS**

Funds must be consistent with the mission of the Foundation and in support of scholarships or program(s) of the University. A request to open a fund may be made by signing a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The opening of all funds for usage here of must be approved by the FSUF Executive Committee.

The request to open a fund must be with the full knowledge of the appropriate University officials and in most cases will have the department chairman or program director as the Fund Representative responsible to the Foundation.

Funds may be made inactive and closed for one or more of the following reasons:

- There is a zero dollar balance and no additional income is anticipated.
- There has been no income received or expenditures made for three fiscal years. If there is a fund balance, the fund representative will be contacted with the option to make the fund active again by making a deposit or authorizing an appropriate expenditure. If that is not possible, a list of FSU Foundation funds that closely match the fund purpose described in the fund's memorandum of understanding will be provided for the fund representative to authorize a transfer of the remaining fund balance.
- The Initiative funds set up for FSU Foundation Opportunity Grants will be closed at the end of the fiscal year with all remaining funds being transferred back into the Foundation fund that was used to open the fund unless a written request for an extension is received.
- An endowed fund will only be closed if the donor defaults on their pledge and the minimum endowment level has not yet been met. Every attempt will be made to follow the donor intent as closely as possible for the use of the funds, but approval for the transfer of funds will be made as follows:

TRANSFER AMOUNT	APPROVED BY
<\$5,001	FSUF Executive Director
\$5,001-\$10,000	FSUF Executive Committee
>\$10,000	FSUF Board of Directors

Fund Types

Endowed Funds

(i.e. 40### / 43### scholarship/student aid, 44### quasi-endowments, 47### multi-purpose, 48### non-scholarship)

The FSUF may approve the establishment of a special purpose and/or unrestricted endowed fund upon receipt of a charitable contribution or commitment which meets its approved financial and other criteria. Endowed funds bearing individuals' names and any other unrestricted funds must be approved by the FSUF Executive Committee.

In all cases, the establishment of a special purpose endowed fund requires the prior approval of the FSUF (Executive Director) and the University (President), evidenced by signature on the MOU. Endowed funds shall be credited with earnings on invested funds in accordance with the Foundation's investment strategy and approved fee structure. Income available for award shall be determined by the Board's investment and endowment spending policies. Criteria for fund usage and designation of the appropriate Fund Representative must be approved by the Executive Director.

The Board votes annually on the spending policy for endowed funds. The funds eligible to be spent will remain in the endowment until the appropriate expenditure documentation is received. Fund representatives may request only up to the amount of money allocated for the current fiscal year. Any funds that are not utilized will remain invested for future endowment growth and are not permitted to be transferred to another fund or carried over and added to future fiscal year spending amounts.

Exception: For non-scholarship endowments, the Board realizes there are special circumstances, such as expensive equipment purchases, when the annual spending policy amount alone would be insufficient to cover the cost. Therefore, the fund representative may submit a proposal to save up to five years of spending policy amounts to be spent all in one year. In order to qualify, the fund representative must submit a written proposal to the Foundation office detailing their plan, timeframe, and approximate cost no later than December 31 to start saving that fiscal year's funds. Approval will be sought for the proposal based upon the expected expenditure amount as detailed below. Note that any modifications to the plan require a written request for approval and that it should not be assumed that prior years' savings will automatically be allowed to be considered for the new plan. In addition, it should not be assumed that because a request was approved in the past a future similar request will also be approved.

EXPENDITURE AMOUNT	APPROVED BY
<\$5,001	FSUF Executive Director
\$5,001-\$10,000	FSUF Executive Committee
>\$10,000	FSUF Board of Directors

Because conditions change over time, all endowment instruments, Memorandums of Understanding, or similar mutually accepted and approved agreements should contain the following contingency clause:

"If, in the unlikely event that at some time in the future it becomes impossible or impractical to fulfill the requirements of this [Memorandum of Understanding], the Board of Directors of the FSUF, in consultation with FSU and the Donor, if available, shall utilize this Fund as closely as possible in accordance with the purposes described in Section 2 [Purpose] of this document."

Endowed funds require a signed commitment of a minimum of \$10,000 (amount subject to change by approval of the FSUF). However, no expenditures can be made until the historic gift value (total of the contributions) is at least \$10,000 and has been invested for at least one full-year (\$10,000 has to be invested by March 31 so that by July 1 of the next year the spending policy amount can be spent).

At the \$10,000 level the donor can name the fund and set one criterion for the award. To set more than one criterion for an award there is a \$25,000 minimum level, but the fund can start to make awards following that criteria once the \$10,000 level has been reached.

Commitments made through an estate provision or multi-year pledge in excess of five years are subject to minimum funding requirements at the time the commitment is fulfilled. Should the charitable contribution be insufficient to meet the minimum funding requirements set for endowed funds by the Foundation at any time for any reason, the charitable contribution will be used by the Foundation at the discretion of the Board of Directors in a manner most closely approximating the donors purpose as stated in Section 2 [Purpose] of the Memorandum of Understanding. Endowed funds that were funded prior to June 1, 2018 will not be subject to the same criteria limitations as stated above.

Each fund will have a fund designee to receive fund information. If a donor, family member or representative cannot serve, the Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. shall be designated.

Commitments for contributions must be negotiated and accepted on behalf of the Foundation by the Executive Director or designated representative. (i.e. University Advancement Staff or University President).

Holding Funds

(79###)

Holding funds are established when no formal commitment to establish an endowed fund has been determined in advance (i.e. memorials) or with a signed bequest intention.

Holding funds can be established under the following conditions:

- a) with a minimum contribution of \$500.00; and/or
- b) upon the death of an individual whose friends or family send contributions to memorialize the individual. In this case, when no pre-existing fund exists, funds are placed in a holding fund until the amount and intent can be established; and/or
- c) when estate provisions have not yet been realized. (This allows the donor, family, and friends to contribute to the fund in advance of the bequest gift being realized).

Holding funds must have a fund designee. Holding funds will be reviewed annually. Funds may be closed with the balance transferred for appropriate use as approved by the FSUF Executive Director, if the amount in the fund is \$5,000 or below, or by the Executive Committee, if the fund has more than \$5,000 but under \$10,000.

A holding fund may be closed with the balance transferred to establish an endowed fund when sufficient funds are made available or are anticipated through a signed commitment of gift (i.e. pledge). When a holding fund reaches the minimum endowed fund amount (\$10,000), the fund will be closed with the balance transferred to an endowed fund, activating an existing MOU for that fund, or requiring an MOU be signed by the fund designee

Note: University friends can be memorialized or honored on our memorial wall/wall of honor with a contribution of

\$500.00. Contributions of any amount are accepted as memorial gifts.

Development Funds (Program Support Funds)

(i.e.70###, 78###, 80###, 82###)

Development funds represent monies raised or contributed for specific program support of schools, departments, divisions, special interests, or for programs approved and recognized by the University.

All development funds must have on record a Memorandum of Understanding stating the purpose of the fund. Funds related to the support of specific departments shall have the Department Chairman (or his/her designee) as the Fund Representative.

Development funds can be established for a recommended minimum amount of \$500 upon approval of the FSUF Executive Committee. All development funds are subject to a maintenance fee as defined under the fee structure.

Each development fund must have a designated Fund Representative responsible for submitting deposits and expenditure requests on the appropriate forms for the fund. The Fund Representative will receive all fund information and agrees to abide by the standard operating procedures of the Foundation. Failure to abide by the Standard Operating Policies and Procedures of the FSUF constitutes sufficient cause for FSUF to replace the Fund Representative with a new one.

Interest earned on development funds accrues to the FSUF for general operating expenses.

Pass-Through Funds

(i.e. 60###, 63###, 64###, 65###, 66###, 68###)

Pass-through funds can be opened upon approval of the FSUF Executive Committee. All pass-through funds must have on record a Memorandum of Understanding stating the purpose of the fund. Criteria for fund usage and designation of the appropriate Fund Representative must be approved by the Executive Director.

The purpose of a pass-through scholarship fund (60### / 66###) is to facilitate the administration of scholarship award dollars on an annual basis.

Pass-through scholarship funds require a gift of at least \$500 annually for a minimum of three years. At this level the donor can name the scholarship and set one criterion for the award. For a gift of at least \$1,000 annually for a minimum of three years the donor can name the scholarship and set two criteria for the award. For an annual gift of \$5,000 or more the donor can name the fund and negotiate criteria to be approved by the Executive Director. Funds to be disbursed for the next academic year must be received by March 15. No awards can be made in advance of receipt of funds. Pass-through funds are not subject to a maintenance fee as defined under the fee structure.

The purpose of a pass-through fund (64###) is to facilitate the administration of Foundation owned Life Insurance Policy premiums. They are also used to record expenditures the Foundation makes that are reimbursed by the University.

Pass-Through Funds (63###, 65###, 68###) can be opened that "shadow" an endowed fund for the purpose of making an award upon approval of the FSUF Executive Committee. Donors may utilize this feature to make an immediate impact, and do not require a minimum amount or annual commitment. Some reasons for creating a "shadow" fund include:

- One-year waiting period before investment allows for an expenditure (See spending policy); or
- When donor(s) has/have a multi-year pledge for a fund that has not reached the minimum balance; or
- If a donor prefers to provide pass-through funds instead of utilizing funds from the endowment for any given fiscal year.

Note: "Shadow" pass-through funds are awarded using the criteria of the endowed fund it shadows.

Grants

(58###)

It is the policy of FSU to administer any programs supported by grant dollars through the FSU Business Office and the Office of Research and Sponsored Programs. In some circumstances and upon approval by the appropriate FSU officials, FSU may request FSUF to administer grant dollars.

For proposals that FSU determines require the use of the FSUF 501(c)3 status and for which the formal FSU grant approval process has been followed, the FSUF will be a favorable participant per its standard operating procedures. It is the policy of the FSUF that whenever reasonably possible, any funds for the support of an FSU supervised and sponsored project or program be administered through the FSU Business Office and the Office of Research and Sponsored Programs in a manner consistent with normal FSU business practices. This includes, but is not limited to, purchase of equipment, materials, personnel contracts, awards, financial aid, unrestricted grants, etc...

All grant co-sponsorship requests to FSUF must include a statement indicating FSU acceptance of the transfer of appropriate grant funds and oversight of participants and programs.

Student Loan Funds

(10700) Emergency, (10705) Veteran

Emergency and veteran student loans can vary in the amount available, terms, repayment schedules, and intended recipients. It is recommended that loans be made for durations of 90-days or less. The loan program has specific criteria on file in the Foundation Office. Loan recipients must be recommended by the appropriate University Official which includes routing through the Office of Financial Aid for undergraduate students and the Office of Graduate Studies for graduate students. Loans of \$2,000 or less may be approved by the Foundation's Director of Administration and Finance; loans in excess of \$2,000 must be approved by the FSUF Executive Director. Signed legal loan agreements must be completed by each recipient for loans of any amount. A hold is placed on the student's record to assure repayment of the loan.

Student loan funds are not subject to a maintenance fee as defined under the fee structure.

Initiative Funds

(i.e. 3####, 50###, 90###)

Initiative funds represent University-wide initiatives which may include, but are not limited to:

- state, regional, or national special events
- promotions or special campaigns as requested by the University through the Office of the President, by the executive committee of FSUF, or by the FSUF executive director.

Initiative funds may be established for any amount upon approval of the FSUF Executive Committee. Each

initiative fund must have a designated Fund Representative responsible for approving all expenditures. The Fund Representative shall receive all fund information and agrees to abide by the standard operating procedures of the Foundation. Initiative funds are not subject to a maintenance fee as defined under the fee structure.

University Projects and Promotions Fund (90424)

This fund is designated for the use of the FSU President for purposes of cultivating prospects and donors and in promoting FSU and FSUF. All authorization-to-pay requests require the signature of the president. Review of the request and the check approval is to be completed by two FSUF corporate officers who are not employed by FSU. (The Executive Director of the Foundation cannot approve expenditures from this Fund.)

Operating Funds

(0####)

Operating funds represent internal FSU Foundation funds which may include, but are not limited to:

- Individual property funds
- Operating expense funds
- Funds necessary to record audit entries (i.e. Receivables, Assets, Unrealized Gain/Loss, etc.)

***FEE STRUCTURE**

The FSUF has a responsibility to its constituencies and to the Board of Directors to preserve the capital assets of the Foundation, to earn an equitable rate of return on all assets, and to operate in accordance with established policies and procedures. To cover its administrative (direct & indirect) costs and to build appropriate reserve funds, specific funds are managed in accordance with the following guidelines:

The investment portfolio is reduced by the appropriate costs paid for its professional management (USM investment managers). Additionally, the FSUF, Inc. shall take up to one (1%) percent of the value of the investment portfolio (June 30 market) on an annual basis for the purpose of supporting the overall organization.

Earnings on Invested Funds

The portfolio is defined as the invested assets as managed by the Foundation. Endowed assets are managed by an approved investment manager following guidelines recommended by the Investment Committee or its assignee. The review of such management shall be on-going. At any time the Investment Committee may recommend or the Board of Directors may request the solicitation of proposals for new management.

Non-endowed assets are managed by managers or institutions recommended by the Investment Committee upon approval of the Board of Directors. The review of such managers shall be on-going. At any time the Investment Committee may recommend or the Board of Directors may request the solicitation of proposals for new management.

Each endowed fund receives a pro-rated share of the realized earnings on invested funds (gains or losses). Unrealized gains or losses are maintained in a separate fund. The Investment Committee Chair of the FSUF shall receive regular reports regarding all investments. The managers of the FSUF investments will provide an annual report to the Investment Committee and/or the Board of Directors at the fall meeting.

Endowed funds are credited to the investment portfolio. The investment "market" value will be reported to donors, along with cash value, annually using the audited June 30 figures.

Non-endowed assets do not earn income for the specific fund and are held at cash value upon deposit with the institution or manager assigned such holdings.

Fee Charges *

FUND TYPE	INCOME	FEE
Endowed	Allocated monthly by USMF custodian based on the number of units owned.	Annual fees are collected up to one (1%) percent of the value of the investment portfolio (June 30 market) for the purpose of supporting the overall organization. Note: Managers of FSUF investments also deduct fees.
Holding Funds	Interest accrues to FSUF Operating Fund.	Based on expenditure activity. In the rare event of expenditures from a holding fund, the fee structure follows that of development funds.
Development Funds	Interest accrues to FSUF Operating Fund.	Quarterly maintenance fee (5%) based on expenditure activity**. Fee percentage is subject to change by approval of the FSUF.
Pass-Through Funds	Interest accrues to FSUF Operating Fund.	No maintenance fees.
Grants	Interest accrues to FSUF Operating Fund until the funds are granted to FSU.	Administrative fees charged only if allowable by granting organization. Exceptions are made for each specific situation.
Student Loan Funds	Interest accrues to FSUF Operating Fund.	No maintenance fees. Borrower may be charged appropriate fees involved with the collection of outstanding loans.
Initiative Funds	Interest accrues to FSUF Operating Fund.	No maintenance fees.

^{*} All funds receiving income from a credit card transaction will be charged the credit card company's fee. The only exception is for contributions to mirrored pass-through funds made to increase the annual award amount from the endowment to a specific level.

Determination of fund classification will be made by the Executive Director. Any changes in fee structures must be approved by the FSUF Executive Committee.

^{**} Fees on expenditure activity are limited to operational expenditures which excludes fund transfers within the Foundation.

^{***} In the event a Check is returned, if the check was non-charitable the return check fee will be charged to the fund it was to be deposited into. If the gift was charitable, the return check fee will be charged to the Operating fund. In both cases the person who wrote the check will be notified of the return check and the return check fee so that they can hopefully reissue payment and reimburse FSUF for the return check fee.

***FUND REPORTING**

The Fund Representative for endowed funds (non-scholarship) will be provided the spending policy allowance for the current and upcoming fiscal year three times a year including expenditure information. Fund representatives do not receive fund balance reports for endowed funds. The fund representative for non-endowed funds (i.e. development, initiative, etc.) is provided a quarterly financial report including income/expenditures. A "Department Notification of Giving Report" is provided to fund representatives of all funds via e-mail biweekly for all funds that have received contributions during the two week time period being reported.

The Office of Financial Aid is provided spending allocation for all endowed and pass-through scholarship funds.

Fund Designees of endowed funds are provided fund balance reports and fair market values a minimum of two times annually. Fund designees of development and pass-through funds are provided financial reports upon request.

***BUDGET PROCESS**

Pre-Approval

Each year, Fund Representatives are requested to submit a budget proposal by May 1 for the subsequent fiscal year (beginning on July 1) to the Budget Committee for approval. The purpose of budget pre-approval is to review anticipated income/expenditures for proposed activities. Pre-approval eliminates the delay or need for expenditure approval at a later date. The budget process also provides the Foundation management with a cash-flow projection to maximize investments.

Budgets shall be submitted using the line item categories of activities for deposits and expenditures as used by the Foundation. Budget formats are available upon request. All budget requests are reviewed and approved by the Executive Committee and then sent to the FSUF Board of Directors for approval at the June meeting.

Fund Representatives who do not submit a budget by the May 1 deadline must request approval for expenditures on a case-by-case basis prior to funds being expended, regardless of the fund balance. Approval will be given for expenditures as outlined in table below:

EXPENDITURE AMOUNT	APPROVED BY	PROCEDURE
<\$5,001	FSUF Executive Director	signed authorization-to-pay form
\$5,001-\$10,000	FSUF Executive Committee	completed expenditure request form
>\$10,000	FSUF Board of Directors	completed expenditure request form

There are certain funds that are exempt from the budget proposal and expenditure request form guidelines. All endowed funds are exempt because it is anticipated that they will expend up to the annual spending allocation amount. Development funds that were created to gather funds for a very specific and timely purpose are exempt from needing to submit a budget for pre-approval. Examples include but are not limited to equipment and large events.

All expenditures, regardless of amount, are reviewed by the Executive Director and FSUF Treasurer (or approved designated Foundation officers).

Note: Expenditures to transfer funds to investment portfolios are exempt from the expenditure limitation amount. The full amount contributed will be transferred to the investment portfolio by the current policies established by the investment manager. The Director of Administration and Finance of the Foundation will approve these transfers. For amounts over the pre-set threshold at the bank, the Executive Director or FSUF Treasurer (or approved designated Foundation officers) will need to approve the transfer.

Fund Representatives will be informed quarterly if a check they authorized remains uncashed from the previous quarter. At the close of the fiscal year, all uncashed checks from the previous fiscal year will be written off.

Deposit of Funds

The FSUF is designated by University policy as the administering organization for all private philanthropic support of Frostburg State University. All funds deposited with the Foundation are subject to the standard operating procedures as outlined in this policy manual.

Bank Statements will be reconciled monthly and approved by the FSUF Executive Director.

Fund Receipts

Deposits for any fund must be received directly at the FSUF office. The FSUF office staff will be responsible for recording the funds and issuing a receipt and letter of acknowledgment when appropriate.

In the event that a Fund Representative directly receives monies for deposit as the result of a fundraising activity, the responsible Fund Representative must complete an Authorization to Deposit form (Appendix C) to submit to the Foundation Office. These monies must be deposited with the Foundation within one week of receipt. Fund Representatives are responsible for the accuracy of any cash presented for deposit. All cash must be delivered in person and verified by FSUF office staff. *IMPORTANT: The Fund Representative must also include the original dated envelope AND correspondence accompanying the contribution(s) received.*

The FSUF is required to provide a receipt/acknowledgement to all donors. The FSU President will acknowledge contributions exceeding \$5,000 and contributions of any amount from USM Regents.

Non-designated monies received by the Foundation will be held in the Annual Fund and used as determined by the FSUF Board of Directors.

***DEVELOPMENT FUND REVENUE**

Fund representatives of development funds are permitted to conduct sponsored programs and activities to generate income (i.e. instructional camps, special events, workshops, etc.) Approval to conduct income-generating activities must be granted by the FSUF Executive Director. Fund Representatives are responsible for complying with all FSUF insurance requirements and for providing the Foundation Office with a complete listing of participants and/or registrants and amount received from each at the conclusion of an activity/project.

The Foundation requires that all solicitations for contributions, conferences and seminars, special fund-raising events, grants, or other such activities where the funds are to be deposited in a Foundation fund MUST be approved *in advance* (in draft format) by the Executive Director when identified as an FSU Foundation, Inc. program/activity. Suggested wording for solicitation literature:

"This event is an activity of the FSU Foundation, Inc. Funds earned will be managed by the FSU Foundation for the benefit of (fund name). Please make your check payable to FSU Foundation, Inc.[FSUF] – (fund name).

OR

"This (Program/Event/Activity) is an activity of the FSU Foundation, Inc. Please make your check payable to FSU Foundation, Inc. [FSUF] – (fund name)."

OR

"The funds raised will be administered by the FSU Foundation, Inc. for the benefit of (fund name). Please make your check payable to FSU Foundation, Inc.[FSUF] – (fund name)."

Frostburg State University also requires the following statement on all invitation/event publications:

"FSU is committed to making all of its programs, services and activities accessible to persons with disabilities. To request accommodation through the ADA Compliance Office, call 301.687.4102 or use a Voice Relay Operator at 1.800.735.2258."

*****ACKNOWLEDGMENT PROCEDURES

In order for contributions to be deposited, accounted for, and acknowledged correctly, it is imperative to follow each step in this process. Backup staff members will fill in when the primary is absent. Additions and corrections to this process should be sent to the Director of Advancement Services (DAS) and the Director of Administration and Finance for the FSU Foundation for review and approval.

Charitable contributions, which include grants, sponsorships, and matching gifts, will be mailed to the Foundation. When solicitation return materials are created (i.e. pledge reminder return envelopes), the address will be:

Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. 101 Braddock Road Frostburg, MD 21532-2303

Tender

All tender will be placed in the Foundation lockbox located in the Foundation office. Tender is received in many ways:

- US Mail (Employee receiving mail will sort out contributions when possible and place in lockbox)
- Hand Delivered (include documentation if available)
- PayPal (printed PayPal report)
- Phonathon Credit Card (printed phone-a-thon report)

Note: Phonathon supervisor will hand deliver the Phonathon credit card report to Foundation employees. Foundation employees will charge credit cards. Foundation employees will immediately black out credit card numbers from the charge slip and all reports.

- Faculty/Staff Payroll Deduction (printed report)
- Maryland Charity Campaign (printed report)
- Electronic Funds Transfer (printed report)
- Recurring Credit Card (printed report)
- Sponsorships
- Grants
- Gift-in-Kind form
- Wire transfer of securities or cash
- All Other Methods

Two unrelated staff members, DAS and Foundation Director of Administration and Finance or their designees, will retrieve all contributions from the lockbox. Together, they will open envelopes and complete a 'Gift Log' and a 'Non-Gift Log.' At this time determination is made as to the charitable nature of each tender based upon IRS and CASE standards.

Sample Gift Log

Date	#	Tender	Total
		Cash	
		Checks	
		Credit Cards	
Approved		EFT	
		GIK	
		PayPal (online)	
Batch#		Payroll Deductions	
		Securities	
		Other:	
Grand Total:	·		

Sample Non-Gift Log

Date	#	NON-GIFT Tender	Total
		Cash	
		Checks	
		PayPal - Credit Cards	
Approved		PayPal - Web	
		EFT	
		Other:	
Grand Total:			

DAS will make copies of all checks and documentation needed for gift entry and return checks to Foundation employees. Foundation employees will make copies of all non-contribution checks.

Advancement Services Staff will post all transactions, creating new records, and updating biographic information as needed.

Advancement Services Staff will give DAS the 'Batch Proof Report.' DAS will verify all gift entry and make sure it matches the 'Gift Log.' DAS and Advancement Services Staff will discuss the status of gifts not posted. Gifts not posted will be highlighted on a copy of the 'Gift Log' and will be reviewed each day until the gifts have been posted.

Advancement Services Staff will create gift receipt/acknowledgement letters. Advancement Services Staff will review the receipts with Foundation employees to ensure the gift information matches the receipt and a receipt is sent for every transaction. (Recurring transactions receive a summary receipt at end of calendar year.)

At least weekly, Foundation employees will create a batch for entry into the accounting system by running the 'deposit report' from Advance and verifying all check numbers, amounts, funds, and names for all contributions. Foundation employees will add all non-contributions to the report and verify the totals from all Non-Gift Logs to complete the total batch for deposit. Foundation employees will take checks to the bank for deposit.

Special letters are needed for the following situations:

- In Memory/Honor Gifts (i.e. Ellis and Sloop)
- Gifts-in-Kind (only include item and not the amount; include special IRS language with the IRS form 8283)
- Matching Gift (one to company with IRS language, one to individual without IRS language)
- Donor Advised Funds (one to DAF with IRS language, one to individual without IRS language)
- Securities (show stock, # shares, value, and include special IRS language with the IRS form 8283)
- Estate Distributions
- Gifts with a premium (include special IRS language)
- Designated gift within a specific fund (when this is done data specialist will notify Foundation staff)

DAS will proof the letters for grammatical/spelling errors and ensure that special letters are used when needed.

The Executive Director of the FSUF or designee will sign the letters.

Advancement Services Staff will stuff the envelopes and mail.

Receipt letters should be mailed 48 hours of receiving a charitable contribution.

Non-Gifts/Registrations

Foundation employees will handle all non-gifts and registrations. These are not charitable contributions and will not be entered into the donor database. If part of the payment is charitable, the designated amounts will be recorded on the Gift-Log and the Non-Gift Log.

Pledges

Advancement Services Staff will post all pledges. Prior to posting, DAS will be notified when the pledge is received. DAS will add the pledge to the Gift Log. After posting, Advancement Services Staff will give DAS the 'Batch Proof Report' for review.

Matching Gifts

Advancement Services Staff will enter a matching claim when notified of a pending matching gift. The DAS will fill out matching gift paperwork upon receiving form and verifying charitable contribution and submit to the company. When the matching gift check arrives, it will be placed in the lockbox.

Gift/Pledge Modifications

Requests for gift/pledge modifications will be sent directly to Director of Advancement Services. DAS and Advancement Services Staff will perform modifications and notify DAS when a modification is completed.

New Funds

Working with Foundation employees, DAS will create new funds in Advance. A Foundation employee will create the fund number and open the new funds in accounting software. The new fund form must be completed (see Appendix A).

Records/Filing

The DAS and Data Specialist will file charitable contribution/pledge documentation daily.

Foundation employees will post and file deposit information at least monthly.

Notification of Charitable contributions

Fund representatives will be notified via e-mail of all contributions made to their respective funds on a bi-weekly basis. Foundation employees run the department notification report from Advance and prepare individual fund reports.

The family of a person who was memorialized by a contribution shall be notified in a letter on a monthly basis. A person who was honored by a contribution shall be notified in a letter on a monthly basis.

***EXPENDITURE GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES**

Fund Representatives are obligated to follow the Bylaws under which the FSU Foundation operates and must be able to justify all expenditures as legal and in compliance with policies established by Frostburg State University or the FSUF.

The Foundation maintains a policy of issuing checks weekly. Emergency requests can be made; no checks will be issued without completion of proper documentation.

The FSUF requires two signatures on checks issued by the Foundation. Authorized signatures include the Executive Director and the members of the FSUF Board of Directors Executive Committee who have been authorized by the bank.

Expenditures submitted through the Authorization to Pay process not considered consistent with the mission or role of the Foundation may be denied by the Executive Director or by any Foundation officer. The denial of payment may be appealed to the Executive Committee at the next scheduled meeting. Examples include requests for expenditures that are unrelated to the original intent and purpose of the fund as stated in the Memorandum of Understanding.

*TRAVEL

When possible travel expenditures should be submitted for reimbursement to FSU. The FSUF will reimburse the FSU account that paid the reimbursement. The check to the University account will be paid after the FSUF receives a copy of the paperwork submitted to FSU with an Attached Authorization to Pay form (Appendix B). The FSUF will verify with the Accounts Payable Office the amount FSU approved for reimbursement. Partial reimbursements are also permitted.

In the rare circumstance where travel reimbursement expenses cannot be paid by FSU, travel expenditures may be reimbursed directly through the FSUF using an Authorization to Pay form (Appendix B) with original receipts attached. Please note that an explanation of why FSU cannot pay the reimbursement must be documented on the attached travel reimbursement form (Appendix E).

Out-of-state travel expenses:

a) Must submit original receipts (no photo copies) for reimbursable items; including transportation receipts/stubs (air travel, car rental, rail and bus) for which tickets were purchased so long as the receipted stub indicates amount paid and destination.

Lodging expenses:

Lodging expenses are allowable while away from the University on official business.

Meals / Entertainment expenses:

- a) must submit original receipts (no photo copies) for meal cost while away from the University on official business or request the per diem rate approved by the University System of Maryland; and/or
- b) business expense meal(s) for the individual and any guests. Identify all guests by full name and purpose of the visit/business meeting.

Auto Mileage expenses:

- a) Mileage is reimbursable for the distance driven for official FSU business.
- b) The rate for reimbursement is the rate approved by the University System of Maryland. Frostburg State University policies regarding use of State Vehicles also apply.
- c) Tolls and parking may be reimbursed by submitting original dated receipts.

***SALARIES**

The Foundation prefers to reimburse appropriate University funds for salaries and contracted services, but the FSUF can also pay contractors directly. Contracts must be paid entirely by either FSU or the FSUF. Split contracts are not permitted. (See the section on Employment Practices for further information). An IRS form W-2 or 1099, as required by law, will be issued to individuals receiving direct compensation (non reimbursable item).

The State Ethics Law prohibits FSU employees from contracting for services that are not wholly separate from his/her FSU appointment. The FSU Office of Human Resources may be asked to review the terms of any contract to determine if a conflict exists.

***GOODS AND SERVICES**

For payment of goods and services, an Authorization to Pay form (Appendix B) must be completed by the Fund Representative to verify agreement to expend funds. Fund purchases may be encumbered in advance through the use of a Foundation purchase order. Checks written by the Foundation for approved expenditures will be sent directly to the vendor unless notified in advance by the appropriate Fund Representative.

The Foundation maintains a policy of issuing checks weekly. Emergency requests can be made. No checks will be issued without completion of proper documentation.

Fund Representatives should select vendors based on their ability to meet program needs economically and efficiently. For purchases of \$5,000 or greater, Fund Representatives should use competitive bidding (oral quotes acceptable) subject to time constraints and availability of goods and services.

In certain situations, competitive bidding is required. If competitive bidding is not sought, the Fund Representative must provide written justification. The Executive Director shall review all bids and recommendations for acceptance of bids and may reject or accept the Fund Representative's recommendation. The following situations fall under these guidelines:

- When equipment or fixed assets to be purchased are \$25,000 or greater, quotes from at least two vendors must be obtained and submitted with the Authorization to Pay form.
- When a vendor is to be paid \$5,000 or greater AND is either employed by the University or serves as an elected member of the Foundation's Board of Directors, it is mandatory that written, competitive quotes accompany all purchase requests or Authorization to Pay forms.

***DEFINITIONS:**

Scholarship Awards

Financial support is based on academic achievement and/or other criteria that may include financial need. Attachment "A" of the Memorandum of Understanding for each fund states the criteria for selection of recipient(s). Proceeds of the scholarship offset the cost of the student's education for an upcoming or current academic year, depending on when the student receives the funds. Foundation funds shall not be used to exceed the actual cost of attendance when combined with other scholarship and/or grant monies.

Note: It is the policy of the Foundation to provide scholarship awards in two payments—one payment at the beginning of each semester. FSUF will issue payment to FSU to be applied to the individual's account upon satisfactory registration. Before a scholarship check can be issued, the Foundation must have a request from the Financial Aid Office with the name, address, and student ID number of the recipients.

Stipends are not viewed as employment income, but rather as an award in recognition for service to the University. A stipend is intended to encourage the participation of the highest caliber of students of any financial means.

Grants are financial support based on academic achievement or other criteria that may include financial need. A grant recipient is selected based on specific criteria, which is typically set by the federal or state governments or the institution.

An Annually Funded/Pass-Through is a fund that has no endowment to support it and may be non-recurring.

An **Assistantship** is an academic job held by a graduate or undergraduate student, which involves pay for services rendered. The department providing the assistantship determines the obligations of the assistantship.

An **Endowed Fund** is a separate fund, the principal of which is maintained in perpetuity and invested for the purpose of producing income to be either expended or added to principal.

A **Quasi Endowed Fund** is a separate fund (i.e. operating reserve), the principal of which may be spent upon approval of the Board, but is primarily intended to be maintained for a period of time or in perpetuity. Present and future income may be expended or added to principal. The Board can elect to invest contributions that are not for an endowment, but have other donor restrictions, into a quasi endowed fund (i.e. Development Reserve) in the hopes of earning a return until the funds are needed for the restricted purposes.

An **Expendable Fund** is intended to be expended down to zero balance, over one fiscal year. (Terms exceeding one fiscal year will be specified in the fund's memorandum of understanding.)

A **Fellowship** is financial support to reduce the cost of a graduate student's education. Some fellowships include a tuition waiver or a payment to the University in lieu of tuition. Fellowships may include stipends to cover living expenses. Students receive payments to assist them in pursuing a course of study or research. This payment is not a payment for teaching, performing research, or other services. Fellowships are taxable income to the recipient. Exclusions to the taxable income are amounts used to pay for tuition/fees, books and supplies.

Financial Aid is money provided to a student to help pay for the student's education from federal, state, institutional, and private sources. Major forms of financial aid include gift aid (grants and scholarships) and self-help aid (loans and work).

Financial Aid Package is the complete collection of scholarships, grants, loans, and work-study employment from all sources (federal, state, institutional, and private) offered to a student to enable him or her to attend the University.

Financial Need is a federally mandated calculation. Standard cost of education less the family's contribution equals the student's financial need.

A Loan is financial support which must be repaid, usually with interest.

Merit-based Financial Aid is provided to a student on the basis of some achievement.

Need-based Financial Aid is provided to a student on the basis of financial need.

Outside Award, Outside Scholarship, and Private Scholarship is where support is given to a specific student determined by an outside entity. Recipient selection is performed by the funding source (e.g., organizations, clubs, trusts, and foundations).

*****ADVANCES

It is not the normal business practice of the Foundation to make cash advances. However, it is understood that certain program activities require advances for cash box change as related to charging admission, minor supplies and equipment needs or for sales. A request for cash advance should be submitted on an Authorization to Pay form (Appendix B) one week prior to the activity. Settlement of an advance must be made within one week of the completion of the activity.

Advances are not made for travel and entertainment.

Any exception to the advance policy must be approved by the Executive Committee.

Purchase orders are recommended whenever possible for making advance supplies and materials purchases of over \$5,000. Purchases made by individuals must follow the standard 'Authorization to Pay' procedure.

♦MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

Acceptable Expenditures (all requiring receipts)

- Expenses incurred for recruiting faculty, staff or students
- Postage
- Promotional material(s)

Non-Reimbursable Expenditures

- Personal expenses (family, spouses, etc.)
- Personal meals (not on official travel or business)
- Equipment not located on University property or held on FSU or Foundation inventory.
- Political contributions-- including tickets or sponsorship to events or program through which any of the proceeds benefit a political candidate or cause.

Fund Representatives should consult the Executive Director prior to the request for reimbursement if an expenditure is questionable.

Fund Representatives will be held responsible for expenditures incurred for items denied by the Foundation office as unjustifiable, illegal, or in non-compliance with policies established by the University, the University System of Maryland, or the Foundation.

Inventory Control

Supplies and materials purchased through the Foundation should be delivered directly to the Fund Representative.

Fund Representatives are responsible for all items purchased through their fund.

Generally speaking, it is important that items of value purchased through the Foundation be donated to Frostburg State University. Items valued over \$5,000 and not donated to the University must be carried on the Foundation inventory.

&GIFTS-IN-KIND DONATED TO THE UNIVERSITY

Charitable contributions of materials, equipment, or other supplies may be accepted by the Foundation upon approval of the Executive Director. The donor must declare the value of donated property and, depending upon the estimated value, additional documentation may be required to meet IRS charitable gift regulations for tax benefits for donated property. Gifts-in-Kind contribution forms are available from the Foundation office.

Gifts-in-kind to be given to the University must follow a formal donation process coordinated through the FSUF to the appropriate University official. The donation process should transpire within 10 working days of delivery of the equipment.

Items purchased by the FSUF for FSU Departments and/or programs must follow a formal donation process coordinated through the FSUF to the appropriate University official. The process occurs at least quarterly.

Exceptions

If the equipment is to be sold within six months, the item should be inventoried on the Foundation's inventory with the proceeds from the sale coded for deposit as "sales/other income."

If the equipment is the result of a grant or other program administered by the Foundation, a written agreement must be on file stating the final disposition of equipment purchased through the Foundation.

***EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES**

The Foundation is a separate incorporated entity; therefore, its employees are neither employees of the University nor the State of Maryland. Foundation employees are not entitled to benefits normally accruing to University or State employees. The Foundation does follow equal opportunity practices which subscribes to all affirmative action policies as followed by the University.

The State of Maryland Ethics Law prohibits FSU employees from contracting for services that are not wholly separate from his/her FSU appointment. The FSU Office of Human resources may be asked to review the terms of any contract to determine if a conflict exists. FSUF contracts contain a clause to identify FSU employees contracting with FSUF and contracts may be denied if the contract is deemed in violation of the State Ethics Law provisions.

A verified Social Security number is required of all employees. Therefore an IRS Form W-9 is required. All full-time and part-time employees must have on file a USCIS Form I-9, IRS Form W-4, and Maryland Form MW507.

To further protect the organization, its programs, and the publics, any FSUF employees dealing with juveniles must complete a criminal record disclosure statement.

The employee(s), through the FSU Foundation, will be covered by Worker's Compensation and Unemployment Insurance.

A full-time/part-time contractual employee will be paid on a bi-weekly basis upon proper completion and documentation of a time sheet and Authorization to Pay form as completed by the Fund Representative. An independent contractor employee will be paid from a completed Authorization to Pay form through the weekly "accounts payable" process. Payment will be sent directly to the designee, *unless otherwise requested*.

Types of Appointments

Full-Time/Full-Time Equivalent: Employees hired by contract for at least twenty (20) hours per week for 52 weeks.

<u>Part-Time</u>: Employees hired by contract for less than thirty-five (35) hours per week for any number of weeks during a year. These are individuals who are supervised and have a specific job description.

Each full-time/part-time employee will execute a contract issued or accepted by the FSUF. Fund Representatives must sign all contracts prior to submission to the Foundation Office. All contracts must be approved by the Executive Director. Appropriate deductions, as determined by the employee withholding forms, for contributions to state tax, federal tax, social security, and Medicare are made.

<u>Contractual:</u> This may be an individual or an organization who independently agrees to perform a specific job without direct supervision. A 1099 federal form for the reporting of compensation will be issued if the total amount during the tax year exceeds the amount determined by IRS laws (currently \$600). This would include honorariums, guest appearances, consultants, and special services.

A completed independent contractor agreement and/or invoice will be completed by the contractor and the Fund

Representative. All contracts must be approved by the FSUF Executive Director in advance of work performance. Forms are available from the Foundation Office.

Involuntary Deductions

The Foundation shall withhold, as required by law, State and Federal Taxes and Employee Social Security Contribution from all compensation paid to full-time/part-time employees.

Full-time/part-time employees must complete a Federal I-9 form (Employment Eligibility Verification) and Federal W-4 (Employee's Withholding Allowance Certificate).

The FSU Foundation will complete W-2 and 1099 forms on an annual basis as required by IRS law for all employees.

Payment of Contract

Fund Representatives are responsible for certifying the employee has met all terms of the contract and for submitting a completed Authorization to Pay form. Unless noted otherwise, payment will be mailed to the address shown on the contract.

Employee Benefits (operating fund only)

Employees hired by the Foundation and paid through the operating fund may have certain benefits as approved by the Executive Committee. All contracts are reviewed on an annual basis with a contract period being July 1 to June 30.

Employee leave (administrative, vacation, sick, holidays, etc.) and compensated time shall be in accordance with University policies as reviewed and approved annually by the FSUF Executive Committee.

A special benefits package with a specific dollar value may be a part of the annual contract.

Examples of approved benefits include purchase of insurance, continuing education programs, deferred compensation, investment, or retirement programs. All benefits must be reported, as necessary, on personal income tax filings.

❖INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

Preface to the Investment Policy

The Investment Committee *or its assignee* is responsible for the oversight of the investment assets of FSUF. The Committee *or its assignee* evaluates, recommends and reports to the Executive Committee and/or FSUF Board of Directors on potential investors, managers, investments, reviews of consultations concerning investments, management of investments, monitoring of investments, and performance.

Investment Statement

The Executive Committee established an Investment Policy Statement for the purpose of providing general guidelines for the prudent investment management of the FSUF invested assets. FSUF recognizes that changing economic and market conditions may make it impossible for investments to precisely mirror all aspects of the investment policy at any point in time and, as such, it is understood that the policy is to serve primarily as a general framework within which the investments are to be managed in order to produce consistent income returns with limited financial risk.

Endowed assets are managed by an approved investment manager following guidelines as recommended by the Investment Committee or its assignee. The review of such management shall be on-going. The Investment Committee may recommend or the Board of Directors may request the solicitation of proposals for new management at any time. Ongoing contracts shall be considered renewed unless determined otherwise at the annual spring meeting.

Non-endowed assets are managed by managers or institutions as recommended by the Investment Committee upon approval of the Board of Directors. The review of such managers shall be on-going. The Investment Committee may recommend or the Board of Directors may request the solicitation of proposals for new management at any time. Ongoing contracts shall be considered renewed unless determined otherwise at the annual spring meeting.

Each endowed fund receives a pro-rated share of the realized earnings on invested funds (gains or losses). Unrealized gains or losses are maintained in a separate fund and disbursed as deemed appropriate by prudent accounting procedures. The investment committee chair of the FSUF shall receive regular reports regarding all investments and the management of the FSUF will provide an annual report to the Investment Committee and the Board of Directors at the fall meeting regarding the investments.

Authority to Implement the Investment Policy

The Board of Directors can elect to delegate the investment management duties for all or some part of the investments to one or more professional investment managers who shall be guided by the overall investment policy guidelines established by this policy statement.

General Investment Objectives

The FSUF follows the investment policies of the USMF, specifically as they relate to endowed and quasi endowed funds. The FSUF may establish other policies as determined by its investment committee for non-endowed assets.

The University System of Maryland Foundation, Inc. Fundamental Investment Principles – Investment Policy Statement (last updated 6/14/2013)

The University System of Maryland Foundation endowment fund's (herein Endowment) Statement of Investment Policies and Objectives is based on certain investment principles the Investment Committee of the Board of Directors regards as fundamental and constant. The committee's intent is to manage the endowment assets in accordance with these principles, regardless of cyclical ebbs and flows in the capital markets, and this documentation of these principles is intended to ensure continuity of purpose and implementation regardless of changes in the composition of the committee.

- 1. <u>Time Horizon</u>. On the one hand, the endowment's investment time horizon should be infinite, since the institution is expected to exist in perpetuity. On the other hand, the purpose of the endowment is to provide a steady and sustainable distribution of funds, which means that large fluctuations in endowment market value over short time periods are highly undesirable. In setting asset allocation policy, the committee will attempt to take into account both of these conflicting time horizons.
- 2. **Spending**. The ideal endowment spending policy considers inter-generational equity, whereby the current needs of the institution are not sacrificed in the interests of the future, nor future needs sacrificed to those of the present.
- 3. <u>Diversification</u>. By allocating funds to asset classes whose returns are not highly correlated over time, the Investment Committee aims to mitigate some of the volatility inherent in equities and thereby provide greater stability in spending distributions than might be possible with a more concentrated portfolio. Although such diversification means the endowment may not reap all of the benefits of equity bull markets, it will also avoid the full brunt of bear markets. No more than 5% of the Fund's assets may be invested with one investment fund and no more than 10% of the Fund's assets may be invested with one investment manager. The Committee may however make exceptions in special circumstances.
- 4. **Return and Risk Objectives.** The overall goal of the Endowment is to manage the funds to an appropriate risk level that meets its long-term objectives. The Endowment will be managed to a return commensurate with the Endowment's objectives, relative to market conditions. Both quantitative and qualitative assessments of risk will be made on the portfolio as a whole. Investment Staff will monitor and report to the Committee underlying portfolio allocations and risk exposures.
- 5. Exchange Listed Products. It may be appropriate for Staff to invest in holdings of index products and their associated derivatives in order to develop core positions within the asset allocation structure, rebalance the portfolio, and/or thematically tilt the portfolio.
- 6. Conflicts of Interest. The Foundation, Investment Committee, and Investment Staff make best efforts

- to avoid potential conflicts of interest. There is a written policy detailing best efforts to avoid these situations or to appropriately manage conflicts of interest when they exist.
- 7. <u>Investment Policy Review.</u> The Committee will take into consideration risks and liquidity needs, with respect to changing market conditions in assessing investment policy. It is expected that the committee will review the endowment's investment policy and asset allocation annually. While it is not anticipated that the investment policy will be changed frequently, the committee should review the policy periodically to ensure that the endowment is capitalizing on available market opportunities.
- 8. Roles and Responsibilities of the Investment Committee. The Committee has been granted the authority by the Board and bears sole responsibility for the management of the endowment and operating portfolios.
 - a. The Committee shall determine and review the Foundation's investment policy for the endowment portfolio and the operating portfolio. This shall include the determination of the return objective, risk tolerance, asset allocation and other constraints. Both return objectives and risk tolerances shall be considered in the context of the spending policy and an appropriate time horizon.
 - b. The Committee may, within the prudence guidelines set forth in the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act as adopted in Maryland, delegate to external investment managers all or part of the endowment and operating portfolios.
 - c. The Committee may delegate to the Investment Staff authority to hire and discharge external investment managers as appropriate and to make direct investments consistent with the asset allocation and the overall return objective and risk tolerance established by the Committee. In addition, the Committee may delegate to Investment Staff authority to buy and/or sell individual securities.
 - d. The Committee shall periodically monitor the portfolio's performance and risk exposures.
 - e. The Committee may, at its discretion, use the services of any outside advisors as the Committee determines is necessary and appropriate to enable the Committee to fulfill its responsibilities
- 9. Roles and Responsibilities of the Investment Staff. The primary responsibility of Staff is to analyze and manage the investments of the Foundation, in accordance with the risk and return guidelines set forth by the Committee.
 - a. The Staff shall manage the portfolio within the risk and asset allocations set by the Committee from time to time.
 - b. The Staff shall monitor and maintain investment exposures, as set forth by the Committee. The parameters of the delegation to Staff shall be monitored by the Chairperson of the Committee.
 - c. The Staff shall use its discretion and execute the following portfolio actions, so long as Staff

has followed the processes and procedures as outlined below:

- i. Terminating or partial redemption from an Investment Manager Staff is granted full discretion to perform this action.
- ii. Retaining or making an additional commitment to an Investment Manager Staff must:
 - 1. Gather Strategic Investment Manager's input in writing
 - 2. Put forth the prospective investment manager to the appropriate Asset Class Committee Member Specialist (or back-up member if unavailable), the Risk Management Committee Member, and the Committee Chairperson.
 - Receive approval to invest in writing from the Committee Chairperson and at least one of the other two investment committee members consulted. Notify the full Investment Committee via e-mail of the potential action with three days notice before execution. Approval from the full committee is not required.
- iii. Exiting/Selling Individual Securities Staff is granted full discretion to perform this action.
- iv. Buying Individual Securities Staff must receive the Risk Management Committee Member or Committee Chairperson's approval in writing.
- d. The Staff will promptly inform all Committee members of any manager hiring and or terminations.
- e. The Staff shall work with its Strategic Investment Managers to maintain appropriate records and provide reports to the Committee and Clients on performance and risk exposures.
- 10. Roles and Responsibilities of the Strategic Investment Managers. The Strategic Investment Managers shall act as additional fiduciaries for the Foundation and its investment portfolios.
 - a. The Strategic Investment Managers shall provide additional investment expertise to the Committee and Staff. This includes top-down portfolio asset allocation as well as investment strategy and manager sourcing, due diligence, risk measurement, monitoring, performance measurement & attribution.
 - b. The Strategic Investment Managers shall reconcile performance reporting with the Foundation's other service providers and managers.
 - c. The Strategic Investment Managers shall maintain appropriate records. They shall also provide portfolio analysis that allows Staff to carry out its roles and responsibilities.
 - d. The Strategic Investment Managers shall work with Staff to generate Client and Committee

reports.

- 11. <u>Roles and Responsibilities of the Investment Managers</u>. The Investment Managers hired by the Foundation shall provide portfolio management, risk management, security selection, and performance attribution reporting in accordance with the purposes for which they were hired.
 - a. The Investment Managers' goals shall meet or exceed their defined benchmarks or expected targets, as established when hired.

Investment Committee Membership (USMF)

The USMF Investment Committee shall have a maximum of 13 members.

There will be no term limit for Committee members, but there will be an informal goal to drop one existing member and add one new member every two years. Members who discover they cannot participate consistently are encouraged to relinquish their position.

Term length for the Committee Chairman is three years and limited to two terms with a vote for reelection at the end of the first term.

General Risk Parameter (For non-endowed assets)

It is recognized that virtually all investments entail some degree of risk; therefore, defining risk for the FSUF assets is not a precise science. However, to establish a general risk tolerance for the assets, FSUF has determined that high quality investments providing an opportunity for growth of capital are essential. While the fund as a whole should project a generally conservative identity, limited use of more aggressive investments is permissible for diversification purposes.

Fixed income securities: these securities held as assets by the fund must be limited to obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies or securities with an "A" bond rating or above (i.e. where there is little or no risk to principal upon maturity or risk to income). Investments where the risk is greater than this parameter must be closely reviewed and may not represent a major portion of the investments.

For investments in equity securities, risk is to be measured in terms of volatility relative to the S&P 500 stock index. FSUF desires that the average volatility of the investments equity portfolio be approximately two percent less than that of the S&P 500.

Liquidity

To meet short term liquidity requirements, a minimum of five percent of the invested assets should be maintained in cash/cash equivalents. Cash/cash equivalents can appropriately include cash, money market, mutual funds, and/or individual money market instruments.

Diversification

In order to achieve a prudent level of portfolio diversification, the securities of any one company should not exceed more than five percent of the total investments and no more than twenty percent of the total assets should be invested in any one industry.

Investment Restriction / Prohibitions

FSUF has determined that the general guidelines established by the Investment Policy are sufficient to clearly delineate the invested assets' overall direction, and, as such, to maximize investment flexibility within these guidelines, no additional specific investment prohibitions or restrictions are necessary. However, it is recognized that FSUF must abide by the policy and guidelines of the UMS Board of Regents, and in doing so, some restrictions imposed by the Board of Regents may apply from time to time.

Review and Evaluation

The Investment Committee shall annually review the performance of the investments, unless more frequently necessitated by unusual changes in economic and investment cycles or by material changes in the basic underlying investment objectives of the investment assets.

Asset Allocation Guidelines

To best achieve the stated objectives, the invested assets are to be invested using the following guidelines:

- Cash and short-term securities: Minimum of 10%
- Fixed Income / bonds: Maximum of 50% with a 15% deviation allowance
- Equity and Convertible Securities Maximum of 50% with a 15% deviation allowance.

The Short-Term Securities provide stability of principal and daily liquidity. Bonds provide a relatively high and stable income flow. Bonds help protect the income return of the invested assets from sharp fluctuations in short term rates and complement the more volatile long term return potential from Equity Securities. Equity Securities, over time, provide a hedge against inflation through an increase in capital value as well as an increase in dividend income.

SPENDING POLICY

The FSUF follows the spending policy of the USMF but reserves the right to make changes at any time. The Spending Policy will be reviewed annually to determine if appropriate adjustment is necessary. The FSUF votes in June on the annual spending rate. The FSUF applies the rate to the preceding March 31 fair market value with the resulting allocation appropriated for expenditures to occur starting July 1 of the proceeding calendar year. The spending policy is as follows:

The University System of Maryland Foundation, Inc. Spending Policy (last updated 2/3/2012)

The two key components of the policy are to preserve the purchasing power of the assets ("Intergenerational Equity") and to provide a predictable and steady support for programs. These components are based on the expectation that returns over time should be equal to the spending rate plus a consideration of inflation as well as any expense levies.

In order to achieve the above, the USMF Spending Policy Committee will approve an annual spending rate in February for the coming fiscal year. December 31 values will be used to calculate the spending rate. Once approved by the Executive Committee, the funds will be considered appropriated for expenditure as of the first day of the fiscal year in which the funds will be spent.

The Spending Rate will be a combination of the following two factors by weighting (a) 30% and (b) 70% to calculate a per unit rate. Once calculated, the rate should be no more than 4.5% or less than 3.5% of the moving average market value.

- Compute the average market value for the period ending December 31, 20XX using the previous twenty (20) quarters. Then calculate 5% of this average market value. This is equivalent of using a moving average as each year the first four quarters drop off and the most recent four quarters are added.
- Calculate an adjusted spending rate using the prior year's percentage increased by the Higher Education Price Index (HEPI) (Changed from Consumer Price Index (CPI) effective February 14, 2008).
- Calculate an equivalent per unit amount. Compute the distributed amount by multiplying the calculated per unit amount by the number of units attributable to each fund.

The Spending Rate yielded by the above formula is only for advisory purposes and is not binding upon the Committee's deliberations and recommendation to the Executive Committee of the annual spending rate.

Newly created individual endowment funds, in order to have annual Spendable Income, must be invested for at least one year prior to the calculation date and have a minimum value as recommended by the Spending Policy Committee and affirmed by the Executive Committee. The depreciation and/or appreciation in the market value will accrue to each individual endowment fund.

With the enactment of UPMIFA (Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds Act) in Maryland, the concept of historic dollar value has been eliminated. Spending from endowments is now subject to a rule of prudence, keeping the following guidelines in mind: (UPMIFA Guidelines)

- 1) the duration and preservation of the endowment fund
- 2) the purposes of the Institution and the endowment fund
- 3) the general economic conditions
- 4) the possible effect of inflation or deflation
- 5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
- 6) other resources of the Institution
- 7) the USMF investment policy

While spending from funds previously considered underwater (the fair market value is less than the historic dollar value) is not prohibited under UPMIFA as it was under previous law (UMIFA), the Foundation is nonetheless required to adopt a prudent spending policy keeping the UPMIFA Guidelines in mind. To that end, there should be no funds appropriated for expenditure from underwater funds except where the institution makes a specific request and that request is supported by an acceptable justification and documentation using the UPMIFA Guidelines, an attempt has been made to secure the donor's consent to the expenditure, and the President of the institution benefitting from the fund requests the expenditure in writing. Requests shall be submitted first to the Spending Policy Committee, which will make a recommendation to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall, in making its determination, include all documentation submitted in support of the request as an attachment to the minutes. In no event will funds be appropriated for expenditure from an underwater fund where the donor has expressed a contrary intent in the gift agreement or other relevant documents.

UPMIFA, as adopted in Maryland, contains the following provisions:

Estates and Trusts Section 15-403 (d) (2) and (3):

- (2) The appropriation for expenditure for expenditure in any year of an amount greater than 7 percent of the fair market value of an endowment fund creates a rebuttable presumption of imprudence.
- (3) The institution shall notify the Attorney General of the appropriation for expenditure in any year of an amount greater than 7 percent of the fair market value of an endowment fund.

For purposes of the above referenced provision, an appropriation for expenditure does not include carryover funds, i.e., spendable income which remains unspent at the end of the fiscal year and is carried over to the following fiscal year.

In general, the spending guidelines of UPMIFA and the Spending Rate determined by this Policy apply only in cases where the donor has not expressed a contrary intent in the gift agreement or other relevant documents. Unrestricted assets of the Foundation will not be used to supplement spendable income from underwater funds.

Terminology

<u>Market Value</u> - Current market price of the portfolio using the individual security prices when available as indicated by the latest trade record or the values as provided by investment managers when those investments do not have readily determined current values. The value of the total fund includes receipts, disbursements, interest, dividends, realized gains or losses, and unrealized gains or losses.

<u>Unit Value</u> - The standard of measurement for the endowment fund. The value of one unit was established in 1985 at \$10.00. Current unit value is calculated by dividing the total market value by the number of outstanding units. New funds and earnings deposited in each account purchase units at the current value. Therefore, each fund owns a specific # of units. All disbursements are based on unit value.

<u>Underwater Fund</u> - A fund with the fair market value that is less than the sum of the initial charitable gift amount plus any additional gifts the donor contributes.

***CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTION POLICY PROCEDURES**

Preface to the Charitable Contribution Policy

This policy is designed to provide guidance to the many Frostburg State University donors and the general public to facilitate the charitable contribution process. These procedures are to serve as guidelines for the FSUF and may be altered on a case-by-case basis at the Foundation's initiative.

Policy Statement

Frostburg State University (FSU) strongly encourages the solicitation and acceptance of charitable contributions which enable it to fulfill its educational mission of teaching, research, and community service.

For an institution dedicated to higher education, charitable contributions are essential and provide the opportunity for FSU to excel in many areas. Charitable contributions in support of FSU shall be made to the Foundation.

The FSUF was incorporated in 1970 and granted a 501 (c) (3) non profit corporation for educational purposes by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).

The FSUF is designated by the University System of Maryland Board of Regents as the official affiliated Foundation of FSU. The President of FSU is designated by the Board of Regents as the responsible officer to ensure compliance with affiliated foundation policies. The president will appoint and approve appropriate FSU management and resources to facilitate FSUF operations. FSUF is registered as a charitable organization or exempt from registration in all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia.

It is the policy of the FSUF not to engage in activities that provide a good or service in exchange for a charitable contribution. It is recognized, however, that there may be situations that warrant exceptions. Such exceptions are determined by the FSUF Executive Director. Program support activities through which a service or product is provided may or may not qualify as a charitable deduction for the participant and Fund Representatives should consult the Executive Director before making any claims as to the tax-deductible status of any event.

The FSUF is the parent organization for other support organizations of FSU including the Athletic Development Fund, FSU Alumni Association, Friends of Music, Cultural Events Series, Children's Literature Centre, and WFWM Radio. Charitable contributions in support of FSU may be sought from individuals, corporations, foundations, and federal, state, and local entities. However, they may be sought only for purposes, positions, and programs which already have appropriate academic or administrative approval.

The FSUF values and will protect its integrity, its independence, and the academic freedom of the FSU community. Charitable contributions that may expose FSUF or FSU to adverse publicity, require expenditures beyond the FSUF or FSU resources, or involve the FSUF or FSU in unexpected responsibilities because of their source, conditions, or purposes, require approval by the appropriate FSU administrative officer and FSUF Executive Committee. Either FSUF or FSU may withhold approval of acceptance, pending a review by appropriate counsel, administrative personnel, or committees appointed for that purpose. Under other circumstances, the FSUF and FSU delegate authority to receive charitable contributions only to the FSUF Executive Director, FSU Advancement Office, or the FSU President in appropriate cases when charitable contributions are personally solicited or received.

The FSUF is unable to accept charitable contributions which are too restrictive in purpose or inconsistent with the educational mission of FSU. The FSUF cannot accept charitable contributions which involve unlawful discrimination based upon race, religion, sex, age, national origin, color, handicap, or any other basis prohibited by federal, state, and local laws and regulations. Neither can the FSUF accept charitable contributions which obligate it to violate any other applicable law or regulation, nor which violate the FSUF or FSU articles of incorporation, charter, constitution, bylaws, operating procedures, or stated governing provisions. Charitable contributions the FSUF receives must not inhibit it from seeking charitable contributions from other donors, be they similar or different, foreign, or domestic. Further, no charitable contribution can be received which limits, beyond a general definition of subject area, the research that a faculty member or student may perform.

Methods of Giving

Many types of assets may be used to provide charitable contributions to FSU. A variety of methods of giving to the FSUF allows donors to choose the most appropriate designation for their circumstances and interests.

Outright charitable contributions are those placed at the immediate disposal of the FSUF and in which the donor retains no interest. They may be either restricted or unrestricted in purpose. Charitable contributions which are donated to the FSUF without any express limitation placed upon them will be credited to the unrestricted funds.

Recognition of Charitable Contributions

Certain charitable contributions may qualify for additional recognition and may provide naming opportunities. The FSUF provides charitable tax deduction receipts for qualifying charitable contributions. Memorial contributions are accepted and specific funds may be established for these purposes.

All receipts for charitable donations to FSUF shall contain the following language:

"Frostburg State University Foundation is a 501(c)3 nonprofit organization. Your contribution is taxdeductible to the extent allowed by law. No goods or services were provided in exchange for your generous contribution."

If a good or service was provided in exchange for the contribution, the receipt will indicate the value for the good/service provided and the net tax-deductible contribution to the FSUF.

Unrestricted and Restricted Endowed Funds and Programs

The most useful charitable contributions are those with the fewest possible restrictions. Unrestricted funds allow the FSUF to address its most pressing needs in support of FSU. The FSUF may approve the establishment of unrestricted and restricted endowed funds and programs upon the receipt of charitable contributions or commitments which meet its approved financial and other criteria. Endowments bearing individuals' names or otherwise rendered discrete from unrestricted funds must be approved by the FSUF Executive Committee. Endowed and annual programs may be established for less than the stated minimum; however, no awards will occur until the minimum is achieved. FSUF generally transfers payments for awards to FSU for implementation of the programs. Awards may provide complete or supplemental support for the program.

Naming Opportunities

\$10,000	General endowed scholarship or Program Support Fund (up to one restriction)
\$25,000	Endowed Scholarship or Program Support Fund (More than one restriction)
\$50,000	Endowed Fellowship Fund - Fellowship funds are for faculty and staff development; Annual fellowships can be funded for $\$5,000$
\$250,000	Fully endowed scholarship fund (different amount for graduate student)
\$500,000	Endowed Professorship
\$1,000,000	Endowed Faculty Chair (for department Chair)
\$2,000,000	Endowed Deanship
\$3,000,000	Distinguished Endowed Faculty Chair (fully endowed)

Special Programmatic Naming Opportunities

\$2,000,000	Naming a department within a college or administrative unit
\$5,000,000	Naming an existing college
\$10,000,000	Naming a new college, major academic program, or newly created Center

Naming opportunities within existing facilities:

Recognition opportunities begin at \$5,000 and are available for a variety of spaces. Such naming opportunities are subject to the approval of the University and should be in accordance with University System of Maryland policies.

In all cases, the establishment of a special purpose fund requires the prior approval of the FSUF Executive Committee and the FSU President.

Gifts made to name spaces that are already constructed and do not currently need renovation will be invested in an endowment to support the department that resides in the named space unless it is a shared facility. In this case it will be invested in a general endowment that supports all programs housed in the building. These endowed funds are often a combination of several naming opportunities; therefore the Memorandum of Understanding for the fund is executed by the Foundation, and no further donor reports on spending from the fund will be provided to the donors.

Gifts made to name spaces that have yet to be constructed or currently need renovation will be put into a development fund for that purpose. If over \$10,000 remains after the construction and/or renovation is complete, the

funds will be invested in an endowment to support the department that resides in the named space unless it is a shared facility. If it is a shared facility it will be invested in a general endowment that supports all programs housed in the building. Because the purpose of the original donation was to construct and/or renovate a space, the Memorandum of Understanding for the remaining funds is executed by the Foundation, and no further donor reports on spending from the fund will be provided to the donors. If under \$10,000 remains after the construction and/or renovation is complete, the funds will remain in the development fund for any future facility update or program expense in the named space.

Naming opportunities for less than \$25,000 benefiting Athletics will be designated for current operations through a development fund. Naming opportunities for \$25,000 or more will follow the naming policies as outlined above. The Memorandum of Understanding for this fund has already been executed by the Foundation, and no further donor reports on spending from the fund will be provided to the donors.

Because conditions change over time, all endowment instruments, Memorandums of Understanding or similar mutually accepted and approved agreements should contain the following contingency clause:

"If, in the unlikely event that at some time in the future, it becomes impossible or impractical to fulfill the requirements of this Memorandum of Understanding, the Board of Directors of the FSUF, in consultation with FSU and the Donor, if available, shall utilize this Fund as closely as possible in accordance with the purposes described in Section 2 [Purpose] of this document."

Naming opportunities under \$5,000:

All naming opportunities for under \$5,000 will be for current operations and be in support of immediate needs of the department/programs the naming supports. Exceptions can be made to allow these funds to be invested into a current endowed fund on a case by case basis as approved by the Executive Director of the Foundation.

Cash Contributions

Charitable Contributions by Check

Checks should be made payable to FSU Foundation, Inc. and mailed to:

FSU Foundation, Inc. 101 Braddock Rd. Frostburg, MD 21532

Checks may also be hand delivered to the FSUF office (Fuller House, 101 Braddock Road, Frostburg, MD).

The postmark date will be the effective gift date for cash charitable contributions mailed to the FSUF. The date cash is hand delivered to the office will be the effective gift date.

Charitable contributions qualifying for charitable tax deduction purposes will be receipted separately by the FSUF.

Charitable Contributions by Credit Card

Charitable contributions by credit card received in the mail or via telephone will be processed daily. Credit card information received via phone by University Advancement staff must be provided to the Foundation office as soon as possible for daily processing. Phonathon supervisor will hand deliver Phonathon credit card report to Foundation employee(s) daily.

The date the credit card is charged will be the effective gift date for charitable contributions.

Recurring credit card information will be held in a secured file and processed according to the schedule established with the donor.

Foundation employees will charge credit cards and will immediately shred or black out credit card numbers from the charge slip and all reports.

Charitable Contributions by Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT)

Charitable contributions by EFT may be received by the Foundation Office with prior notification, including a completed EFT authorization form with signature.

Donors may authorize the Foundation to charge their checking account a designated amount for a specified period of time. Foundation employees initiate the EFT batch at least two business days prior to the 10th of the month. Transactions will typically post to the donor's account on the 10th of the month or the next closest business day. Foundation employees will verify that the transaction occurred successfully prior to crediting the appropriate fund.

Charitable contributions of Securities and Methods of Delivery

Publicly-traded securities, shares of stock in closely-held companies, bonds, and government issues may be given to the FSUF. Charitable contributions of securities may be made by notifying the FSUF Executive Director or FSUF at FSU Foundation, Inc., 101 Braddock Road, Frostburg, MD 21532 or 301/687.4752. Information pertaining to securities transfer will be provided to the donor and may include one of two methods:

- Transfer directly to the University System of Maryland Foundation through electronic stock wire transfer. Electronic transfers are recorded on the date of transmittal. The value of the charitable contribution will be the average of the high and low market value on the date of transfer when the security is received; OR
- Transfer to the FSUF by sending/delivering the certificate and an executed stock power for each separate issue of stock or bond to the FSU Foundation Office (see address above). If the securities are hand-delivered to the FSUF, the value of the charitable contribution will be the average of the high and low market value on the business date of delivery. Donor should endorse stock certificates only on delivery to the FSUF. If the securities are mailed to the FSUF, the value of the charitable contribution will be the average of the high and low market value on the postmarked date.

Donors should obtain a stock power from their banker or broker, signing their name exactly as it appears on the certificates, and have their signature guaranteed by their banker or broker. The stock power and a letter of instruction should be mailed to the FSUF under separate cover from the stock certificate(s). The FSUF should be designated on the stock certificate(s), stock power, or related instruments of transfer as Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. The stock certificate(s) should be sent by registered mail, return receipt requested, to the FSUF. Unendorsed stock certificates are non-negotiable. The postmark date on the *last* document received will be used as the gift date.

The market value of securities and the actual beginning dollar value of an FSUF fund may differ as a result of market vagary, marketability of a security, unexpected costs, fees, etc. The FSUF does not reduce charitable contributions by a set percentage and works to establish funds at the highest fair value possible.

<u>Publicly Traded Securities</u>: These are securities regularly traded on a public stock exchange. The value of the charitable contribution will be the mean of the highest and lowest selling prices quoted for the stock on the business day of the charitable contribution.

<u>Closely Held Securities</u>: These are shares of stock in entities which have been organized for profit-making purposes and are rarely traded on stock exchanges. Donors may give shares of closely-held corporate securities to the FSUF in the same manner as publicly-traded securities. However, because closely-held stocks are not publicly-traded, these securities present special concerns. To convert them into cash, the FSUF must own the securities. Thus, it will not formally or informally enter into any redemption agreement with the donor. Charitable contributions of closely-held securities require acceptance by the FSUF Executive Committee and may require additional legal or financial counsel.

Non-Traditional Investments

The FSUF may accept charitable contributions of non-traditional investments, such as partnership interests, after a thorough review of the following factors:

- marketability;
- nature of any applicable restrictions;
- legal and other liabilities associated with the asset;
- carrying costs such as administrative and legal fees; and
- exposure to unrelated business income tax liability.

Real Estate

Proposed Charitable contributions of real estate are to be reviewed by the FSUF Real Estate Committee and recommended to the FSUF Board of Directors. Legal counsel should be consulted concerning the implications of accepting real estate contributions. However, the decision to accept charitable contributions of real estate resides with the FSUF Board of Directors. The donor is expected in almost all cases to be responsible for all expenses including appraisal, transfer, recordation and any other taxes, and any indebtedness relating to the real estate transaction.

The FSUF may accept charitable contributions of real estate, including houses, condominiums, commercial properties, farm land, rental property, and undeveloped land, after a thorough review of the following factors:

- the usefulness of the property for FSUF or FSU purposes;
- the marketability of the property;
- the existence of restrictions, reservations, easements, and/or other limitations;
- the existence of encumbrances, such as mortgages and mechanic's liens;
- carrying costs, such as property owner's association dues, taxes, insurance, and other maintenance expenses; and
- fair market value in relation to the costs and limits listed above as determined by a qualified appraisal conducted in accordance with IRS standards.

Prior to the acceptance of any parcel of real property, an assessment of the potential environmental risks will be conducted. This assessment shall include the following:

- an inquiry to the present owner regarding his/her or its knowledge of the history of the property;
- a title search to determine who the prior owners might have been;
- a consultation with federal, state, and local environmental agencies to find out whether the property has any history of hazardous waste contamination; and
- a visual inspection of the property for any evidence of environmental hazards.

An environmental audit conducted by a professional service may also be required. For all charitable contributions of real estate, the FSUF Executive Director or FSU Advancement Office will consult with the FSUF Executive Committee and FSU President and legal counsel as needed concerning the implications of

accepting the charitable contribution. The decision to accept charitable contributions of real estate resides with the FSUF Board of Directors. The donor is responsible in almost all cases for all expenses including appraisal, transfer, recordation and any other taxes, and any indebtedness relating to the real estate transaction.

Acquisition by Purchase

The Real Estate Committee has authority to negotiate and recommend real estate for acquisition (purchase, transfer or other). The combined value of real estate acquired by purchase should not exceed ten percent (10%) of the non-endowed cash assets of the FSUF. Debt incurred by a fund by real estate purchase may not exceed the current appraised value of the property.

Due to the ongoing possibility of acquiring real estate which can provide some unique financial benefit to the University, the FSUF may waive or exempt the proposed acquisition from the above limitations provided the Real Estate Committee recommends the waiver or exemption and further provided that the FSUF Board approves the Real Estate Committee's recommendation.

The FSUF may liquidate real estate holdings through sale or transfer at any time. The FSUF will maintain separate funds for each real estate transaction being held as a reportable asset.

Real estate must demonstrate fiscal responsibility for short-term and long-term investment return. Real estate acquisitions must be first reviewed by the Real Estate Committee and then recommended to the Executive Committee. The FSUF Board of Directors may review and approve real estate acquisitions.

A proposition may be sent by mail/e-mail to all voting members for a proposition by mail/e-mail to be approved if referred to the full Board and it is not opportune to convene a full Board meeting. A 2/3 majority of voting (ex-officio excluded) directors is required.

Tangible Personal Property / Gifts-In-Kind

The FSUF may accept charitable contributions of tangible personal property, including works of art, jewelry, antiques, coin, stamp and other collections, equipment, automobiles, manuscripts, and books. Such charitable contributions may be accepted only after a thorough review indicates the property is readily marketable OR may be used by the FSUF or FSU in a manner consistent with one of the purposes for which the charitable contribution was granted status. Gifts-in-kind of tangible property which are not readily marketable are subject to approval by the FSUF Executive Committee.

An essential issue for donors to consider before contributing a gift of tangible personal property is whether the donor would like the FSUF to use or display the property. Items purchased and gifts-in-kind to be given to FSU must follow a formal process coordinated through the FSU Foundation Office to the appropriate FSU official. FSU reserves the right to reject any gift-in-kind offers from the FSUF.

Donors should be advised that the FSUF reserves the right to sell or otherwise dispose of the personal property in question, if such action is financially advisable or necessary.

If the FSUF intends to sell a gift immediately rather than use or transfer to FSU, the donor must be informed that IRS rules may limit the amount of the charitable deduction to the donor's cost basis. FSUF will adhere to IRS regulations outlined in IRS Form 8282.

Whenever donors estimate their charitable contributions of tangible personal property at more than \$5,000 and donors seek to qualify for a charitable tax deduction, additional IRS regulations apply including the submission of a written appraisal by a qualified independent appraiser and IRS Form 8283. The FSUF cannot appraise or assign valuation to charitable contributions of tangible property. Transfers to FSU require consultation with the appropriate FSU department receiving the transfer and the approval of the FSU Vice President for Administration and Finance for the transfer prior to being added to the FSU inventory.

❖Planned Giving

Planned gifts may be either deferred or outright. They involve the transfer of substantial assets which affect the distribution of the donor's estate. These charitable contributions do not immediately confer FSUF ownership and generally are not taken out of current earnings. The FSUF can serve as sole trustee of any deferred gift which requires the appointment of a fiduciary. As a member of the University System of Maryland, the FSUF may utilize the administrative resources of the University System of Maryland Foundation, Inc. (USMF) and may recommend planned gift and trust arrangements be administered by USMF or other licensed organizations to the benefit of FSUF.

Commitments being made through an estate provision in excess of five years are subject to minimum funding requirements at the time the full gift is received. Should the gift not be sufficient to meet the then minimum funding requirements set for endowed funds by the FSUF, the gift will be used by the FSUF at the discretion of the Board of Directors in a manner most closely approximating the donors original stated intent as described in Section 2 of the Memorandum of Understanding.

The specific benefits of the following strategies are influenced by a number of variables such as a donor's age, income tax bracket, the size of the charitable contribution, and others.

The acceptable methods of creating deferred gifts to the FSUF are described below.

Bequest in Will

A bequest is a charitable contribution of any amount or form made to the FSUF in a donor's Will or other legal document governing the distribution of assets at death.

Bequests may provide for a specific dollar amount in cash, specific securities, specific articles of tangible personal property, or a percentage of the residue of the estate. Charitable contributions may be made to the FSUF through the execution of a new Will or addition or through a codicil to an existing Will. Donors may also add either a residual or contingent codicil to their Wills.

Among donors' options are residuary and contingent bequests. A residuary bequest will give the FSUF all or a portion of the estate after all debts, taxes, expenses, and all specific bequests have been paid.

Donors may also establish by Will an annuity trust or unitrust. The bequest can be arranged to provide a life income for a designated beneficiary by directing that the bequest be used to establish a charitable remainder annuity trust or charitable remainder unitrust. If such a charitable contribution is made by Will, the principal will pass to the FSUF only after the death of the life income beneficiary.

Donors are encouraged to recognize that over the many years following the establishment of an endowment, the needs, policies, and circumstances of the FSUF and FSU can change in unforeseen ways. The FSUF administration must have the flexibility to make use of funds in the best interest of FSU and in accord with donor interests and specifications. Thus, donors are advised to describe the specific purposes of their charitable contributions as broadly as possible and to avoid detailed limitations and restrictions. Donors considering

bequests for a specific purpose are encouraged to consult the FSUF Executive Director or FSU Advancement Office. The inclusion of a flexibility clause similar to the clause in the section on "Unrestricted and Restricted Endowed Funds and Programs" is most desirable.

Designating the Purpose of a Bequest:

<u>Unrestricted</u>: The most useful type of bequest is unrestricted, allowing the funds to be allocated by Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. wherever the need is greatest. A named unrestricted endowment fund may be established as indicated in the above section on "Outright Gifts." The FSUF Executive Committee will designate the purpose and use of such a charitable contribution.

<u>Restricted:</u> You may designate your bequest to support a special program or purpose that reflects your personal or professional interest (for example: scholarships, faculty research and development, or library acquisitions). Such a fund may be established as indicated in the section on "Outright Gifts." A charitable contribution in any amount may be accepted as a contribution to an existing fund earmarked for a specific need of FSUF or FSU so long as the terms and conditions of the existing fund so permit.

If the bequest is restricted to a specific purpose, it is important that the following wording be added at the end of the provision:

".... for so long as the Board of Directors of Frostburg State University Foundation determines that the need exists. Should the need no longer exist, said Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, direct the use of my bequest for a purpose related as closely as possible to that stated above."

If the field of study or specified purpose ceases to need funds in the future, an alternate use for the bequest may be determined.

If the Purpose of the Bequest is not Designated:

If the donor does not designate a purpose the FSU Foundation will automatically do the following:

- If the total amount is under \$10,000 the funds will be deposited into the Unrestricted Annual Fund.
- If the total amount is \$10,000 or more, the funds will be deposited into the Unrestricted Quasi Endowment Fund.

If the Purpose of the Bequest is Designated but there is no pre-existing Memorandum of Understanding:

If the donor designated a purpose, but had not signed a Memorandum of Understanding, the FSU Foundation will automatically do the following:

• Unless otherwise specified by the donor, the FSU Foundation will treat all designated bequests as an intent to create an endowment. If the total amount received is less than the minimum to open an endowment, the funds will be deposited into a holding fund to allow time for the family and friends of the donor to decide if they will contribute the additional funds needed. If additional contributions and pledges bring the fund to the minimum endowed level the funds will be transferred to create an endowment. Should it be determined the minimum level cannot be reached, or there has been no fund growth for three fiscal years, the funds will be transferred to either a development or pass-through fund

as appropriate.

- If it is possible for FSU and the FSU Foundation to abide by the purpose designated and/or the above provision to allow the Board of Directors to direct the use of the funds, a Memorandum of Understanding between FSU and the FSUF will be created and signed by the FSU President and FSU Foundation Executive Director.
- If it is not possible for FSU and the FSU Foundation to abide by the purpose designated and the above provision to allow the Board of Directors to direct the use of the funds, legal counsel will be consulted and every effort made to follow the designation as closely as legally and realistically possible.

Sample Bequest Language:

The following represents sample language that may be used to make a charitable contribution by Will: Percentage of estate for unrestricted purposes:

"I give, devise, and bequeath to Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc., a not-for-profit organization located in Frostburg, Maryland, _____ percent (%) of my estate as an unrestricted gift to be used at the discretion of the Board of Directors of Frostburg State University Foundation for the general purposes of Frostburg State University, located in Frostburg, Maryland."

Percentage of estate for restricted purposes with an endowment provision:

	"I give, devise, and bequeath to Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc., a not-for-profit organization located in Frostburg, Maryland, percent (%) of my estate to establish the (an ENDOWED FUND). The principal of this Fund shall be invested as part
	of Frostburg State University Foundation's permanent endowment and in accordance with its policies. The income there from is to be used by Frostburg State University Foundation, located in Frostburg,
	Maryland, for Contributions may be added to the Fund at any time."
	"If changed circumstances should at some future time make it impractical to continue using the income from the Fund for the purpose designated, then the Frostburg State University Foundation Board of Directors may re-designate the purpose for which the Fund's income may be distributed, provided that the Fund shall continue to bear the name (an ENDOWED FUND), and that the amended terms shall adhere as closely as possible to my original intent."
Specif	ic amount for unrestricted purposes:
	"I give, devise, and bequeath to Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc, a not-for-profit organization located in Frostburg, Maryland, the sum of \$ in cash or in-kind (or shares of stock) to be used at the discretion of the Board of Directors of Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. for the general purposes of Frostburg State University."

Specific amount for restricted purposes:

"I give, devise, and bequeath to Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc., a not-for-pro	fit
organization located in Frostburg, Maryland, the sum of \$ in cash or in-kind (or _	
shares ofstock) to be used for	at
Frostburg State University."	

"If changed circumstances should at some future time make it impractical to continue using the income from the Fund for the purpose designated, then the Frostburg State University Foundation Board of Directors may re-designate the purpose to adhere as closely as possible to my original intent."

Charitable contributions that Provide a Beneficiary Payment

You may wish to make a substantial charitable contribution to Frostburg State University but feel you cannot afford to give up the annual income produced by the asset. Our life-income charitable contribution program offers several ways to help you make a charitable contribution while providing an income for your lifetime or a term of years.

The benefits to the donor vary, but all life-income charitable contributions have the following attractive features:

- income for life or a term of years is paid to you and/or another beneficiary, such as your spouse or another family member;
- increased income if a charitable contribution is made to a life income plan that produces a higher yield than the donated asset;
- an immediate federal income tax charitable deduction is available for a portion of the value of the charitable contribution; and
- favorable treatment of capital gains if the asset given is in the form of securities or real estate that have appreciated in value.

<u>Charitable Gift Annuity</u>: A simple contract by which the donor irrevocably transfers assets to the Foundation in exchange for an agreed-upon payment for life. Rates are influenced by age and based upon recommendations of the American Council on Gift Annuities. The payment will never vary. A portion of the payment from the annuity will be received tax free, depending upon the funding asset. After the end of the life of the donor or the donor and spouse, the remaining funds are available for use by the University. This simple strategy is very popular. It requires a minimum charitable contribution of \$10,000.

"Deferred" Gift Annuity: (contracted at age 50+) Allows one to fund the charitable contribution today but postpone the payments until an agreed-upon later date as early as the donor's 60th birthday. This strategy can aid retirement planning as the donor prepares to augment a potential future reduction in income.

<u>Charitable Remainder Unitrust</u>: The primary feature of a charitable remainder unitrust is that it provides for periodic payment of income to the donor or another person specified by the donor, for life or a specified term of

years, after which the trust assets pass to the FSUF.

The designated beneficiary receives payments based on a fixed percentage of the net fair market value of the trust as valued annually. The fixed percentage may not be less than five percent. Donors may make subsequent additions to the unitrust. Charitable remainder unitrusts are established with minimum charitable contributions of \$100,000. The minimum donor age requirement is 60 years (both spouses when applicable).

<u>Charitable Remainder Annuity Trust</u>: The annuity trust shares many common features with the unitrust, the principal difference being the manner used to calculate the payment to the income beneficiary. The annuity trust provides for fixed payments based upon the fair market value on the date the trust is established.

Charitable remainder annuity trusts are established with minimum charitable contributions of \$100,000.

<u>Charitable Lead Trust</u>: The primary feature of a charitable lead trust is that it provides for the immediate support of the FSUF through a payment generated by the assets in trust for a set period of time, after which the assets pass to a non-charitable beneficiary such as the donor, the donor's children, or other persons the donor specifies. Thus, a charitable lead trust is conceptually the opposite of a charitable remainder trust. In a lead trust, the donor gives the FSUF the current economic benefit of the transferred assets and retains the right to reacquire possession and control of the assets at a future date or designate such to another beneficiary.

The donor during his or her lifetime creates an irrevocable trust agreement for a period of ten years or more. The agreement may take effect during the donor's lifetime or be part of the donor's Will. Assets are transferred to a trustee, with the stipulation that the income from the assets be paid to the FSUF for the life of the trust, after which the principal or corpus of the trust reverts back to the donor or others of his or her choosing.

A lead trust may be advantageous for donors who have a larger income than they currently need and who desire to transfer assets to heirs.

Charitable lead trusts are ordinarily established with minimum charitable contributions of \$1,000,000.

Charitable contributions of Life Insurance

Life insurance can be accepted as a charitable contribution in two ways:

- 1. **FSUF is named owner and irrevocable beneficiary of an existing or new policy.** At the time of ownership transfer, FSUF will count the policy cash surrender value as an outright gift. Remaining premium payments will count as outright gifts as well or may be recorded as a multi-year pledge. The donor will pay premium payments directly to FSUF who will in turn pay the insurance company. A charitable contribution of a new policy with no (or low) cash value will be discouraged unless the policy will be paid up within five years, and/or it is part of a more comprehensive gift plan. Nothing further will be counted as charitable after the policy is paid up.
 - o The donor will be reminded of premiums due, and will remit charitable contributions to FSUF for the amount of the premiums. Payments will be made in yearly lump sum payments
 - o A policy will be considered "abandoned" when premium payments are not paid by the donor upon being reminded. Two additional contacts will be attempted to rectify the fund. If the payment has not been submitted within ten (10) days of the premium due date, the FSUF Executive Committee will decide to:
 - Continue paying the premiums; or
 - Cash out the policy; or
 - Convert policy to paid-up where no more premiums would be necessary.
- 2. **FSUF is named a beneficiary.** The donor retains ownership and will pay premiums directly to the insurance company. Nothing is booked as a charitable contribution until the owner passes at which time the entire death benefit will count as a charitable contribution from the donor's estate on the date the FSUF receives the proceeds *unless* the donor is 65 or older and documents a non-binding estate agreement specifying the value of the death benefit. At the time of death, any amount greater than the bequest intention value will be recorded as an outright gift.

Charitable contribution of a Remainder Interest in a Personal Residence or Farm

A donor can give a remainder interest in a personal residence, such as a home or condominium, or a farm to the FSUF. The donor or other occupants may continue to occupy the residence or operate the farm without disruption for the duration of the donor's life. Thereafter, the residence or farm will either be sold or used by the FSUF for purposes specified by the donor, if any. The procedures for evaluating proposed charitable contributions of real property, as outlined above, also apply to charitable contributions of a remainder interest in property.

If a life estate is retained in the property, expenses for maintenance, real estate taxes, and any indebtedness relating to the property are to be borne by the donor or the primary beneficiary.

Awards

Pinnacle Award

The Pinnacle Award recognizes those who have made significant contributions of Time, Talent or Treasure in support of the educational mission of Frostburg State University through the FSU Foundation.

Pinnacle Award Nomination Criteria

Eligibility – Any alumnus, faculty/staff member, retired or current, as well as any friend of Frostburg State University is eligible provided they have made a significant impact on FSU through the FSU Foundation. The award has typically been bestowed upon those who were members of the FSU Foundation Board of Directors, but that is not a requirement.

Selection Criteria – A maximum of one award can be presented annually to an outstanding candidate. However, should exceptional circumstances arise, an additional Pinnacle Award can be awarded upon recommendation of the Governance Committee and approval by the FSU Foundation Board. A nomination letter should clearly demonstrate evidence of significant contributions to the educational mission of FSU through the FSU Foundation in at least one of the following areas: (Note examples are provided, but are not to be considered an exhaustive list)

- 1. Time
 - Service on the FSU Foundation Board
 - Service as a volunteer advocate for FSU Foundation fundraising initiatives
- 2. Talent
 - Serving on a College or Departmental Advisory Board
 - Being a speaker for student and/or alumni events
 - Advocating for FSU with government officials
- 3. Treasure
 - Membership in the Old Main Society
 - Establishment of an endowed fund through the FSU Foundation
 - Regular support of a pass-through scholarship fund through the FSU Foundation
 - Annual Leadership Level Donor

Nomination Process – Any FSU Foundation Board of Director member, including ex-officio directors, past or present may nominate an individual for this award.

Each nomination letter should include:

- 1. A short description of the person nominated.
- 2. A description of the time, talent, and/or treasure that the individual contributed in support of the educational mission of FSU through the FSU Foundation.
- 3. Mention of any other significant achievements or awards the individual has had.

One (1) copy of the nomination letter should be submitted to the FSU Foundation Executive Director, via email. All nominations received will be considered on an ongoing basis by the FSU Foundation Governance Committee.

Selection Committee – The FSU Foundation Governance Committee will review nominees and recommend award winners to the FSU Foundation Board of Directors based on demonstrated evidence of the aforementioned selection criteria in the submitted nomination letters as well as any additional materials provided by FSU Foundation and University Advancement staff.

❖Final Approval, Acceptance, and Execution by the FSUF

Documents effectuating the acceptance of all charitable contributions, the creation of endowment programs, and the transfer of real or tangible personal property to the FSUF must be approved by legal counsel if needed and executed by the donor, FSUF Executive Director, and FSU President or appropriate official. Documents for the creation of funds shall be executed in duplicate and the original shall be sent to the donor (when applicable) with the remaining original document to the FSUF.

To facilitate the gift-giving and agreement process, the FSUF may prepare the appropriate documents. In such case the donor is advised to have the documents reviewed by his or her legal or financial counsel.

❖PUBLIC INFORMATION POLICY

Since its inception in the early 1970s, the Foundation has been designated to administer private support for Frostburg State University through cash contributions, pledges, real property, gifts-in-kind, and planned gifts. The FSU Foundation is registered as a not-for-profit corporation for the stated purpose of supporting the educational mission of Frostburg State University and is recognized by the University System of Maryland Board of Regents as the "named affiliated foundation" for FSU. For the convenience of interested parties, the FSUF posts substantial information on the University web site such as annual reports, listings, and policies at foundation.frostburg.edu

The Foundation believes that the information it holds should be as open to public inspection as possible, while still respecting the privacy rights of donors, prospective donors, and Foundation employees, without compromising the FSU Foundation's ability to secure and steward funds for the continued success of FSU.

The Foundation strives to operate in an environment of openness and accountability. Many of the FSUF expenditures are directed through the FSU business office and individual donor records are maintained as a part of the University's record keeping system.

Foundation documents available for public review include:

- Audited Financial Statements
- IRS Form 990s
- Listing of FSU Foundation Board of Directors
- Annual Reports
- Operating Policies
- Articles of Incorporation
- Organizational By-laws

Release of Information

The Foundation is a registered charitable organization. Information concerning this status may be obtained by writing to: FSU Foundation, Inc., 101 Braddock Rd, Frostburg, MD 21532. A copy of the annual report and financial statements are on file in the Ort Library, Frostburg State University.

Confidentiality of Information

Donor Information

The Foundation will release (either by its own accord or through a request made by an external party) donor names, gift designations, and gift ranges for charitable contributions it receives to support Frostburg State University unless the donor(s) request confidentiality.

The Foundation's policy exempts the following information from disclosure: information relating to fundraising plans and strategies; trade secret information which, if released, could create a competitive disadvantage; individual employee information other than name, title, and salary; individual student information; and

information relating to trusts administered by the Foundation, except as to actual charitable contributions to the foundation from the trusts and other information protected by law.

To the extent the Foundation receives requests for information not accounted for in this policy, the Board of Directors or its designee will evaluate such requests within a reasonable time and determine whether the requested information can be disclosed consistent with this policy. Absent a specific, clear and necessary constraint on disclosure, the Board of Directors or its designee shall disclose the requested information.

A reasonable fee for the retrieval and reproduction of documents may apply.

❖Periodic Reassessment of the Policy

The FSUF Board of Directors will periodically review this policy. If the Board of Directors revises this policy, it shall provide public notice on the University web site within thirty (30) days of any substantive changes or amendments. This policy and future revisions shall be made publicly available.

This policy does not govern or apply to documents or records held by or maintained by Frostburg State University.

❖Contingency Clause

Due to the ongoing possibility of situations arising which can provide some unique financial or other benefit to the University, the FSUF may waive or exempt the specific situation from the above policies and procedures provided the Executive Director recommends the waiver or exemption and further provided that the FSUF Board approves the Executive Director's recommendation.

***** Board Required Annual Certifications

Annually all Board members must complete the Conflict of Interest Disclosure form, Trustee Background Affirmation Statement, and Annual Consent form. These documents may be completed in person at a meeting or online. There must be unanimous consent to electronic voting prior to any electronic vote being taken.

Conflict of Interest Statement

The Foundation Board of Directors, officers, and key employees have a fiduciary duty to the Foundation. This fiduciary duty requires that, in dealings for the Foundation, they put the interests of the Foundation ahead of all competing interests and that they not take advantage of their position with the Foundation for personal or private gain, either for themselves, any friend or family member, or any other organization in which they may have an interest. The Foundation recognizes the importance of adhering to the highest standards of responsibility, accountability, and public scrutiny.

The purpose of this Conflict of Interest Policy is to help identify situations that present potential or actual conflicts of interest and to specify procedures for reporting, reviewing, and managing them. This Policy is intended to supplement, not supersede, any applicable federal and state laws governing conflicts of interest applicable to nonprofit corporations.

On February 14, 2008, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) promulgated a revised Form 990, the annual reporting form applicable to tax-exempt entities such as the Foundation. The new form contains several questions designed to meet the transparency and accountability needs of the states, the public, and local communities served by the tax-exempt organization. This Conflict of Interest Policy and the Disclosure Form which accompanies it further serve as a mechanism for collecting the information necessary to complete the Form 990.

Guiding Principles and Procedures:

<u>Disclosure</u>. Annually, each board member, officer, and key employee shall on the attached disclosure form disclose interests or affiliations which give rise to, or may give rise to, a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in the context of the Board member's, officer's, or employee's service on behalf of the Foundation. Such interests or affiliations shall include, but not be limited to, ownership interests, outside employment, officerships, directorships, trusteeships, advisory board memberships, committee or commission memberships, partnerships or service arrangements which might in fact or in appearance conflict with such Board member's, officer's, or key employee's responsibilities to the Foundation. If there are material changes in those interests and affiliations during the year, the Board member, officer, or key employee shall promptly amend his or her disclosure for the purpose of disclosing those material changes.

The completed disclosure forms shall be reviewed by Foundation staff and reported to the Governance Committee. The Governance Committee shall make recommendations to the Executive Committee as it deems appropriate with respect to reported conflicts.

Prohibition on Gifts or Other Benefits. Board members, officers, and key employees shall not accept benefits, favors, gifts, or other items of value that might affect the exercise of such person's judgment on behalf of the Foundation, might tend to impair confidence in the Foundation, or might create an appearance of impropriety. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Board members may accept minimal benefits having a value of less than \$100. Moreover, expenses associated with the attendance at investment conferences by Board members who are on the Investment Committee or key employees who are on the investment staff which are absorbed or reimbursed by the entity putting on or otherwise sponsoring the conference shall not be considered a prohibited benefit under this section.

No Financial Relationship with Foundation Unless Disclosed and Approved. No Board member, officer, or key employee shall have any relationship as director, officer, partner, employee, advisory board member, or consultant with or to, or have any substantial financial interest in any investment entity in which, or with which, the Foundation has an investment without prior approval of a majority of those voting on the investment and recusal of the Board member with the relationship. No Board member shall have any financial interest in any transaction between the Foundation and a third party (i.e., commission, finder's fee, annual fee, etc.) unless disclosed in advance to and approved unanimously by the Executive Committee, except if such conflict arises in connection with an investment decision, then the conflict should be disclosed in advance to and approved unanimously by the Investment Committee. This prohibition covers any substantive and material financial interest. This prohibition does not apply to interests in publicly traded securities. If the Foundation has an investment relationship with an entity in which a Board member has an interest at the time the Board member joins the Investment Committee, the Foundation may maintain that investment relationship, provided that in deliberations relating to that investment relationship, the Board member having an interest shall absent himself or herself from the room and shall not otherwise participate in decisions relating to that investment relationship.

<u>No Use of Foundation Information</u>. No Board member shall, for personal gain or for the gain of other organizations or individuals with which he or she is associated, use any information not available to the public-at-large which was obtained as a result of service to the Foundation.

<u>Financial Interest in Proposed Foundation Transaction</u>. When a Board member who is on the Investment Committee has a direct or indirect financial interest in a brokerage firm, an investment manager, a limited partnership or hedge fund entity, or other investment arrangement that is being considered by the Investment Committee for the Foundation, and that Board member discloses such interest to the Investment Committee, the Board member shall withdraw from the Investment Committee's deliberations on such investment or transaction (an "Affected Transaction"). When evaluating an Affected Transaction, the Investment Committee shall carefully review the circumstances of the actual or apparent conflict and evaluate alternative transactions where such an actual or apparent conflict does not exist. If the Investment Committee nevertheless decides to proceed with the Affected

Transaction, the Investment Committee must affirmatively determine that the Affected Transaction is fair and reasonable and that it is in the Foundation's best interests to enter into the Affected Transaction.

<u>Fair and reasonable</u>. All transactions where a board member has declared or been found to have a conflict of interest, whether or not such transaction involves an investment decision, must be fair and reasonable and in the Foundation's best interests.

In applying this Policy, the substance and not the form of the transaction shall be the paramount consideration. Interests of a Board member shall include direct and indirect interests. That is, the Policy shall apply to activities performed by a Board member either directly or through another person. For this purpose, the term "person" includes natural persons as well as partnerships, corporations, companies, associations, limited liability entities, and other organizations.

Confidentiality

The individual disclosure statements shall be held by the Foundation as confidential to the extent permitted by law, but shall be available for review by any Foundation officer or Board member.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM

NOTE: Terms are defined at the end of this document. Please answer all questions with respect to the current fiscal year (the time period from July 1 through June 30).

1)	Ple	ase check all applicable relationships with the Foundation.
		Member of the Board of Directors
		Officer
		Key Employee ⁱ
2)	We	ere you compensated as an officer of the Foundation?
		Yes
		No
3)		d you receive total compensation or other payments exceeding \$10,000 from the Foundation as an ependent contractor during the fiscal year?
		Yes
		No
4)	Die	d you have a Family Relationshipii with any other board member, officer, or key employee?
		Yes
		No
If yes, [oleas	se identify such individual(s) and explain the family relationship.
5)	We	ere you employed by any other board member, officer, or key employee?
		Yes
		No

If yes, p	please identify the individual(s) and explain the business relationship.
6)	Were you employed by an entity with which any other board member, officer, or key employee is associated as a trustee, director, officer, key employee, or more than 35% owner? Yes
	□ No
If yes, p	please identify the entity and the individual(s) and explain the business relationship.
7)	Did you transact business (other than in the ordinary course of either party's business on the same terms as are generally offered to the public) with any other director, officer or key employee, directly or indirectly, in one or more contracts of sale, lease, license, loan, performance of services, or other transaction involving transfers of cash or property in excess of \$10,000 in the aggregate during the tax year? (Indirect transactions are transactions with an organization with which the other director, officer or key employee is associated as a trustee, director, officer, key employee or more than 35% owner.) Business relationships between an attorney and client, medical professional (including psychologist) and patient or a priest/clergy and penitent/communicant are privileged and need not be disclosed.
	□ No
If yes, p involve	please identify the nature and details of the business transaction, including amounts of cash or property d.
8)	Do you and any other board member, officer, or key employee serve together as directors, trustees, officers, or owners of a greater than 10% interest in the same business or investment entity? Yes
	□ No

If yes, please identify the individual(s) and the business or investment entity.
9) Did you or a family member engage in one or more business transactions with the Foundation in which you received payments during the year that exceeded \$100,000 in the aggregate? Tyes
□ No
If yes, please identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash or property exchanged.
10) Did you or a family member engage in one or more business transactions with the Foundation in which all payments during the year for a single transaction exceeded \$10,000? Yes
□ No
If yes, please identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash or property exchanged.
11) Did a family member of yours receive compensation from the Foundation in excess of \$10,000? ————————————————————————————————
□ No
If yes, please identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash or property exchanged.

more whic	ou, individually or collectively with your family, other directors, officers, or key employees, own than 35% of an entity which engaged in one or more business transactions with Foundation in h such entity received payments during the year that exceeded \$100,000 in the aggregate? Yes
	No
If yes, please or property e	identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash xchanged.
busir	ou serve as an officer, director, trustee, or key employee of an entity which engaged in one or more less transactions with the Foundation in which such entity received payments during the year that eded \$100,000 in the aggregate?
	Yes .
	No
If yes, please or property e	identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash xchanged.
mem	ou (including the interests of family members) have more than a 5% interest as a partner or ber if the entity is treated as a partnership or as a shareholder if the entity is a professional pration which engaged in one or more business transactions with the Foundation in which such a received payments during the year that exceeded \$100,000 in the aggregate?
	No
If yes, please or property e	identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash xchanged.

mor whi	you, individually or collectively with your family, other directors, officers, or key employees, own the than 35% of an entity which engaged in one or more business transactions with the Foundation in the hall payments during the year for a single transaction exceeded \$10,000? Yes
	No
If yes, pleasor or property	e identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash exchanged.
bus	you serve as an officer, director, trustee, or key employee of an entity which engaged in one or more iness transactions with the Foundation in which all payments during the year for a single transaction eeded \$10,000?
	Yes
	No
f yes, pleasor property	e identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash exchanged.
mer corp pay	you (including the interests of family members) have more than a 5% interest as a partner or in the entity is treated as a partnership or as a shareholder if the entity is a professional poration which engaged in one or more business transactions with the Foundation in which all ments during the year for a single transaction exceeded \$10,000? Yes
	No
f yes, pleas or property	e identify the individual(s) involved and a description of the transaction, including amounts of cash exchanged.
	st was provided to you containing vendors that were paid \$10,000 or more during the previous fiscal

year by Frostburg State University, Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc., or both. Review the list

carefully. Do you have an affiliation with any of the vendors on the list?

	Yes
	No
If yes, List	the vendor(s) and describe your affiliation(s).

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

I,	, (please print name), hereby:
-	Please Print Name Here
1)	Acknowledge that I have received, read, and fully understand the Foundation Conflict of Interest Policy, and agree to be bound by its terms;
2)	Declare that I have completed the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form to the best of my knowledge; and
3)	State that to the best of my knowledge I do not have an interest that could constitute a conflict of interest, except as hereinbefore disclosed in the Disclosure Form and below.
Signature	Date
	ning below, the signee has agreed that there are no changes to the above statements. In the event there anges, a new form must be completed and signed.
Signature	Date

ⁱKey Employee

For purposes of Form 990 reporting, an employee of the organization (other than an officer, director, or trustee) who meets all three of the following tests is considered a key employee:

- 1. \$150,000 Test: Receives reportable compensation from the organization and all related organizations in excess of \$150,000 for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year;
- 2. Responsibility Test.: The employee:
 - a. has responsibilities, powers, or influence over the organization as a whole that is similar to those of officers, directors, or trustees;
 - b. manages a discrete segment or activity of the organization that represents 10% or more of the activities, assets, income, or expenses of the organization, as compared to the organization as a whole; or
 - c. has or shares authority to control or determine 10% or more of the organization's capital expenditures, operating budget, or compensation for employees.
- 3. Top 20 Test: Is one of the 20 employees (that satisfy the \$150,000 Test and Responsibility Test) with the highest reportable compensation from the organization and related organizations for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

ii Family Member, Family Relationship

Unless specified otherwise, the family of an individual includes only his or her ancestors, spouse, brothers and sisters (whether whole or half blood), children (whether natural or adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren, and spouses of brothers, sisters, children, grandchildren, and great grandchildren.

Trustee Background Affirmation Statement

In connection with contracts that the Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. has or will have with "public bodies" as defined in section 16-101(f) of the Maryland State Finance and Procurement Code, I hereby certify that either

I have not:

- 1) been convicted of, or have pleaded *nolo contendere* to a charge of bribery, attempted bribery, or conspiracy to bribe in violation of Maryland law, or of the law of any other state or federal law:
- 2) been convicted under the state or federal statute of a criminal offense incident to obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private contract, fraud, embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction of records, or receiving stolen property;
- 3) been convicted of any criminal violation of a state or federal antitrust statue;
- 4) been convicted under the provisions of Title 18 of the United States Code for violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organization Act. 18 U.S.C. section 1963, et seq., for acts arising out of the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract;
- 5) been convicted of a violation of the State Minority Business Enterprise Law, section 14-308 of the Maryland State Finance and Procurement Code;
- 6) been convicted of conspiracy to commit any act or omission that would constitute grounds for conviction or liability under any law or statute described in subsection (2), (3), (4) or (5) above;
- 7) been found civilly liable under a state or federal antitrust statute for acts or omissions in connection with the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract;
- 8) admitted in writing or under oath, during the course of an official investigation or other proceeding, acts or omissions that would constitute grounds for conviction or liability under any law or statute described above; and
- 9) been suspended or debarred (including being issued a limited denial of participation) by any public entity; OR

I have committed one or more of the acts listed in the preceding paragraph and provide the following:

- a) description of any conviction, or plea with the date, court, official or administrative body, the sentence or disposition, the name(s) of the person(s) involved and their current positions and responsibilities with the business, and
- b) status of any debarment or suspension including the dates of the suspension or debarment, the name of the public entity and the status of the proceedings, the name(s) of the person(s) involved and their current positions and responsibilities with the business, the grounds for the debarment or suspension, and the details of each person's involvement in any activity that formed the grounds for the debarment or suspension.

INFORMATION, AND BELIEF.				
By signing below, the signee has agreed are changes, a new form must be comple	that there are no changes to the above statements. In the event there eted and signed.			
Signature	Date			

I DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY THAT THE CONTENTS OF THIS AFFIDAVIT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE,

Signature

Annual Consent Form

To comply with Maryland law, the Frostburg State University Foundation, Inc. is requesting your consent to the following:

- I consent to action being taken outside of a meeting via electronic vote provided that to the Secretary's knowledge information and belief:
 - 1. All who would normally be eligible to vote are informed.
 - 2. Records of all votes are tabulated.
 - 3. Sufficient votes to have the motion passed must be obtained.
 - 4. The results will be shared with all eligible voters.
- I consent to having my voice recorded during all teleconference and in person meetings for the purpose of verifying that minutes are accurate. After the minutes for the meeting are approved the voice recording will be deleted.

By signing below, the signee has given consent for the	e current fiscal year.
Signature	Date

***** "WHISTLE BLOWER" POLICY

General

FSUF's Policy of Ethics and Conflict of Interest requires directors, officers, and employees to observe high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As representatives of the Foundation, the practice must be one of honesty and integrity in fulfilling responsibilities and remaining in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Reporting Responsibility

It is the responsibility of all representatives to comply with the Policy and to report violations or suspected violations in accordance with this Whistleblower Policy.

No Retaliation

No representative who in good faith reports a violation of the Policy shall suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment consequence. A representative who retaliates against someone who has reported a violation in good faith is subject to discipline up to and including termination of employment or position on the Foundation's board. This Whistleblower Policy is intended to encourage and enable employees and others to raise serious concerns within the Foundation prior to seeking resolution outside the Foundation.

Reporting Violations

The Policy addresses the Foundation's open door policy and suggests that representatives share their concerns, suggestions, or complaints with someone who can address them properly. In most cases, an employee's supervisor is in the best position to address an area of concern. However, if the complainant is not comfortable speaking with said supervisor, dissatisfied with the supervisor's response, or serves the Foundation as a volunteer, this policy serves to encourage any such individual to speak with anyone in management with whom they are comfortable in approaching.

For suspected fraud or when the complainant is not satisfied or uncomfortable with following the Foundation's open door policy, individuals should contact the Audit Committee Chair, Governance Committee Chair, or the Foundation's external financial auditor.

Compliance Officer

The Board President shall advise the Executive Director, the Audit Committee Chair, and/or the Governance Committee Chair, who may serve as the compliance officer of any violation of the Policy brought to his or her attention by a representative. The Board President has direct access to the audit committee and governance committee of the board of directors.

Accounting and Auditing Matters

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors shall address all reported concerns or complaints regarding corporate accounting practices, internal controls or auditing. The Board President or Audit Committee Chair

shall immediately notify the Audit Committee of any such complaint and work with the Committee until the matter is resolved.

Acting in Good Faith

Anyone filing a complaint concerning a violation or suspected violation of the Policy must be acting in good faith and have reasonable grounds for believing the information disclosed indicates a violation of the Policy. Any allegations that prove not to be substantiated and which prove to have been made maliciously or known by the discloser to be false will be viewed as a serious offense.

Confidentiality

Violations or suspected violations may be submitted on a confidential basis by the complainant or may be submitted anonymously. Reports of violations or suspected violations will be kept confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate investigation.

Handling of Reported Violations

The Compliance Officer will notify the sender and acknowledge receipt of the reported violation or suspected violation within five business days. All reports will be promptly investigated and appropriate corrective action will be taken if warranted by the investigation.

***DOCUMENT RETENTION POLICY**

This policy is established to ensure that the records of the Frostburg State University Foundation (hereafter the "Foundation") are retained as required by law and/or for a period of time deemed to be sufficient given the content and purpose of the record. "Records" include all forms of communications or information relating to the Foundation and its business which have been reduced to "hardcopy" such as paper or film or which can be retrieved from electronic media. Records shall include all incoming and outgoing records as well as drafts, notes, calendars, and personal records relating to Foundation business.

Failure to retain records as required by law could subject employees and the Foundation to penalties and fines, cause the loss of rights, obstruct justice, spoil potential evidence in a lawsuit, place the Foundation in contempt of court, or seriously disadvantage the Foundation in litigation.

The Foundation expects all employees and other persons who generate and access Foundation records to fully comply with this policy. In addition, if an employee or other person believes or is informed by the Foundation, that Foundation records are relevant to litigation or potential litigation (i.e., a dispute that could result in litigation), then those records must be preserved until the Foundation in-house or outside legal counsel determines the records are no longer needed. This exception supersedes any previously or subsequently established destruction schedule for those records.

Retention time periods are noted in the following table unless needed for a longer period of time due to audit requirements or litigation:

ТҮРЕ	RETENTION TIME-LINE
Institutional and Legal Records: (retained in fire-proof safe in FSUF office)	
Articles of Incorporation; By-Laws	Permanent
Copyright and Trademark Registration	Permanent
Contracts (including agreements with investment managers) and Leases	while active + 7 years
Deeds and Titles	Permanent
Licenses	While active + 7 years
IRS Exemption Application and Determination Letter	Permanent
Federal and State Tax Records:	
(retained in files within FSUF office or in the FSUF Storage Shed unless noted below)	

Form 990, Form 990T and State returns with attachments	Permanent		
Form 990, Form 990T and State Support	7 years		
Private Letter Rulings, and Revenue Agent's Reports	Permanent		
IRS Audit Files	7 years		
Unclaimed Property Reports	Permanent		
Minutes of Board of Director Meetings and Committee Meetings	Permanent		
Annual Reports	Permanent		
Litigation Records:			
Claims	While Active + 2 years		
Court Documents and Records	While Active + 2 years		
Deposition Records	While Active + 2 years		
Discover Materials	While Active + 2 years		
Litigation Files	While Active + 2 years		
Records relevant to pending or threatened litigation	Retained until litigation is resolved or threat of litigation gone		
Capital Property Records:			
Inventory	While Active + 7 years		
Property Records including motor vehicle records	While Active + 7 years		
Depreciation Schedules	While Active + 7 years		
Property Improvement Records	While Active + 7 years		
Sales	7 years		
Tax Exemption Records	Life of Property + 7 years		
Mortgage, Bonds, and Other Long Term Debt Records	While Active + 7 years		
Memorandums of Understanding with Donors (in files and scanned and stored in data base)	Permanently		

Bank Records			
Bank Reconciliations and support, bank statements, deposit records, and wire transfer records	7 years		
Exception to above - important payments such as payments for purchase of significant property or lawsuit settlements	Permanently		
Insurance (insurance broker retains)			
Property Insurance Policies	Life of Policy		
Liability Insurance Policies	Life of Policy		
Insurance Claim Documents	Settlement + 7 years		
Payroll Records:			
Individual Employee Files:			
Wage and Salary History	7 years		
Salary or Current Rate of Pay	7 years		
Payroll Deductions	7 years		
Time Sheets	7 years		
W-2 Form	7 years		
W-4 Form	7 years		
Garnishments	While Active + 7 years		
Other:			
Bi-weekly payroll registers	7 years		
Payroll reports to Federal, State and Municipal Agencies	7 years		
Payroll Journal Entries	7 years after final payment		
Unclaimed Salaries and Wages	until required to be reported to State		
Notice of Unemployment Claims	7 years		
Eugathorus Ctata University Form dation Inc	C4 J J O D - I		

Employment:	
Job Announcements and Advertisements:	
Applications or Resumes	1 year
Applicants Not Hired	1 year
Applicants Who are Hired:	
Background Investigations Results (summary letter from contractor for current employees and report for new hires)	While Active + 7 years
Letters of Recommendations	While Active + 7 years
All other employee benefit plans	7 years
Personnel Files:	
Applications and Resumes for Employment	While active + 7 years
Unsuccessful	1 year
If EEO suit	until resolution
Employment History including performance evaluations, disciplinary warnings and termination or layoff notices	While Active + 7 years
Financial Records – including machine-sensible records that contain sufficient transaction-level detail so that the information and the source documents underlying the machine-sensible records can be identified.	
Description of Accounting System	While Active
General ledgers, subsidiary ledgers and year end trial balance	Permanently
Journal Vouchers and Backup	While Active + 7 years
Account Reconciliations	While Active + 7 years
Annual Audits	Permanently

Accounts Payable ledgers and schedules, vouchers for payments and voucher registers and checks	7 years		
Accounts/ Notes Receivable ledgers and schedules	7 years		
Quarterly Unitized Bank Reports	7 years		
Revenue Records:			
Contributions, Grant and Non Gift Records – all documents supporting the transaction such as donor correspondence except for credit card information	7 years		
Credit Card information	numbers and expiration dates shredded or blacked out when processing is complete		
Subsidiary Ledgers and Posting Reports	7 years		
Investment Records:			
All annual reports received from investment managers relating to investment performance, firm operations and market valuations	7 years		
All monthly and quarterly reports received from investment managers relating to investment performance, firm operations and market valuations	1 year		
Monitoring Records	7 years		
Accounts Payable Records:			
Processed and Paid Disbursement and Expense Reimbursement Requests	7 years		
Subsidiary Ledgers and Posting Reports	7 years		
Check Preparation Reports	7 years		
1099 and 1042 Reports	7 years		
Check Register	7 years		
Paper or Electronic Correspondence:			
General/Routine – Screen annually and destroy that material for which no further reference is required. At the end of 2 years all e-mails will be automatically deleted unless noted to be saved. However, employees should periodically review e-mail folder for deletion			
Legal	see litigation		
Investment	see investment		
Audio Recordings of meetings	until the meeting minutes are approved		
Voice mails	deleted as soon as receiver responds to caller or matter resolved, whichever is later.		
Internal Audit:			
Reports and Responses	7 years		

Retention

FSUF usually retains the most recent two years' worth of accounting and payroll documents at FSUF's business office. Documents older than two years are usually archived in an off site facility. (Currently kept in a storage building on FSU Campus.) All other documents are retained on site.

Automatic back-up of all FSUF documents is completed by FSU's information technology department with on and off site storage.

Manual Backup of the accounting system is completed bi-weekly with storage on FSUF computer, FSU main frame computer on-campus site, and FSU's off site backup system.

Employees should consult with CFO prior to destroying any record not identified above.

Disposal

The Director of Administration and Finance is responsible for oversight and approval for the retention and final disposition of records.

- (a) A record shall be made of all disposed documents and filed in the FSUF fire proof safe unless it is an expired insurance policy or part of the annual "clean-up" of records where Accounts Payable, Account Receivable, Payroll, and Investment materials are sent for shredding because they are over 7 years old. The record shall identify the type of record destroyed, the subject matter (if applicable), and the date and method of disposal and the initials of the persons who disposed.
- (b) Any document containing the personal information of Foundation employees, vendors, or donors is secured and maintained in locked offices and shall be shredded when disposition occurs to prevent the document from causing harm to the person (i.e. identity theft and employee privacy).
- (c) The Foundation will have an annual "clean-up" day during which employees shall dedicate their efforts to document storage and disposal in compliance with this policy.

Privacy

Many records subject to record retention requirements contain confidential information. Employee background reports must be stored in the payroll files in a locked cabinet.

Compliance

The Chair of the Audit Committee shall periodically audit to ensure compliance.

❖Appendix A

☐ Private FSUF, Inc. – Ne	w Fund Form Date:
Allocation Code: FSFD Division Accou	ont Restriction Gift / Pledge (circle one)
Account # (5 digit Fund #):	Check #:
Short Name (40): FS	
Long Name:	
Campus: FS Department: Frostburg State University Athletics College of Business College of Education College of Liberal Arts & Sciences	FSU Foundation Academic Affairs Student Affairs Library University Advancement
Sub Department:	
Division: FSU Frostburg State University EDU College of Education	BUS College of Business LAS College of Liberal Arts & Sciences
CFAE: Capital - Endowment Restricted Capital - Endowment Unrestricted Capital - Loan Funds Capital - Property Current Operations - Library Current Operations - Public Service Current Operations - Student Aid	Current Operations - Unrestricted Current Operations - Academic Divisions Current Operations - Athletics Current Operations - Faculty & Staff Current Operations - Physical Plant Current Operations - Research Current Operations - Other Restricted
CFAE Sub (Endowment): Academic Divisions Athletics Faculty & Staff Research Public Service and ext	Library Physical Plant/Operations Student Financial Aid Other Restricted
Restriction: 01 Unrestricted 04 Endow 02 Restricted 05 Resea 03 Scholarship 06 Quasi	
Program Purpose Endow Type ☐ Arts ☐ Challenger Center ☐ Merit ☐ STEM ☐ Evergreen ☐ Health/Wellness ☐ Need-Based ☐ SERF	Renewal and Recruit/Retain on back
Fund Rep: L	ead:
Designee: H	Conoree:
Dir. Admin.&Fin. creates electronic folder, adds t Dir. Admin.&Fin. e-mails Fund Rep, adds fund to	o Advance & GiveCampus, passes to Dir. Admin.&Fin. o "board approval list," adds Fund Rep to Advance. RM and Great Plains, and passes form to Acct. Assoc. signee/Honoree in Adv., & adds to "Needs MOU" list.

Acct School (check one)	
☐Renewal Automatic ☐Renewal Preference ☐Renewal Possible ☐Renewal Not Possible	MOU says automatically goes to renewal student MOU says there is a preference for a renewal student MOU doesn't specify renewable (or renewals equal to other applicants) MOU says it can't be renewed or is a Senior Only award

Acct Dept (check one)

Recruit - Freshman	Freshmen Only*
FRCFRM	(First time awarded; Renewal eligibility coded in Acct School)
Recruit - Transfer	Transfer Only
FRCTRN	(First time awarded; Renewal eligibility coded in Acct School)
Recruit - Freshman/Transfer	First time entering FSU Only*
FRCFMT	(First time awarded; Renewal eligibility coded in Acct School)
Recruit - Graduate	Graduate Only
FRCGRD	(First time awarded; Renewal eligibility coded in Acct School)
Descrit/Details Freelman	I
Recruit/Retain – Freshman	Freshmen* & Upperclassmen (No Transfer or Graduate)
	(No Transfer or Graduate)
Recruit/Retain – Transfer	Transfer & Upperclassmen
FRRTRN	(No Freshmen or Graduate)
Recruit/Retain - Freshman/Transfer	Freshmen*, Transfer, & Upperclassmen Eligible
FRRFMT	(No Graduate)
Recruit/Retain - Freshman/Transf/Grad	Freshmen*, Transfer, Graduate, & Upperclassmen
FRRFTG	(ALL eligible)
Recruit/Retain - Transfer/Graduate	Transfer, Graduate, & Upperclassmen
FRRTRG	(No Freshmen)
Recruit/Retain – Graduate	Graduate & Upperclassmen
FRRGRD	(No Transfer or Freshmen)
Recruit/Retain – International	International & Upperclassmen
FRRINT	(Created for Rowe Study Abroad & International Student)
Retain – Upperclassmen	Sophomores, Juniors, or Seniors Only
FREUPP	(No first-time Transfer)
	Note: ALL 'Study Abroad'

^{*}Note: If MOU states a required GPA in major, then it can't be awarded to freshmen.

❖Appendix B

Authorization to Pay form

	Authorization to Pay			CHECK NO.			
	=	FS	U FOUNDATION	INC.			CHECK DATE
	. 4	10	1 BRADDOCK RO	AD			
			OSTBURG STATE OSTBURG, MARY		0		
		11	-	LAND 21332-109			
DATE OF OR	DER		FUND NAME		FUND NUMBER	3	
TO:							
QUANTITY	UNIT	ARTICLE	OR SERVICES			UNIT	TOTAL PRICE
		Original l	Receipts Must Accomps	ny Authorization			
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
		l					
			TE DISTRIBUTION BE on code on reverse side.	LOW.			
	DE	STRIBUTION:					
FUND NUMBER	PAY	CODE	DESCRIPTION		AMOUNT		TBURG STATE UNIVERSITY
MUNIDER	\pm					FOUN	DATION, INC.
	+					\dashv	
						SIGNA	TURE APPROVAL ve Director)

AUTHORIZED FUND REPRESENTATIVE

❖Appendix C

Authorization to Deposit Form



Authorization to Deposit

FSU FOUNDATION, INC. 101 BRADDOCK ROAD FROSTBURG STATE UNIVERSITY FROSTBURG, MARYLAND 21532-1099

DELIVERED BY AND DATE
DELIVERED DI AMB DATE
1
ACCEPTED BY AND DATE

DATE PREPARED	FUND NUMBER
FUND NAME	I

Bills	Total \$	Coins	Total \$
\$100 x=		Quarters	
\$50 x=		Dimes	
\$20 x=		Nickels	
\$10 x=		Pennies	
\$5 x=		Other:	
\$1 x =		Total Coins =	
\$x=			
Total Bills =		Total Cash =	

DONOR	AMOUNT	CASH	CHECK NO	DISTRIBUTION CODE

TOTAL \$_

FUND DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT

AUTHORIZED FUND REPRESENTATIVE DATE

❖Appendix D

Expenditure/Expense Form



Expenditure Request Form

FSU FOUNDATION, INC. 101 BRADDOCK ROAD FROSTBURG STATE UNIVERSITY FROSTBURG, MARYLAND 21532-1099

DATE OF REQUE	ST	FUND NAME	T	FUND NUMBER		
TO:						
QUANTITY UN	ARTICLE (OR SERVICES			UNIT PRICE	TOTAL PRICE
	Details of l	roposed Expenditure: (attach compet	itive bid:)			
					FROSTE FOUNDA	BURG STATE UNIVERSITY ATION, INC.
AUTHORIZED F	UND REPRESENT	ATIVE TITLE		DATE	SIGNATU (Executive D	RE APPROVAL Xirector)

❖Appendix E

Travel Expense Form



Travel Expense Form

FSU FOUNDATION, INC. 101 BRADDOCK ROAD FROSTBURG STATE UNIVERSITY FROSTBURG, MARYLAND 21532-1099

Office Use Only				
Date Received				
Accepted By				

DATES OF TRAVEL F		FUND NAME		FUND NUM	fBER .
				<u> </u>	
For:	NAME:				
	ADDRESS:				
	ADDRESS.				
	FSU EMPLOYEE:	YES NO			
Mileage:	мп	ES @ ¢/MILE =	TOTA	т.	
				_	
Other Ex	penses (Receipt Require	d):			
Expense	Гупе	Description (Includ	e Names of Gue	ets)	Amount
Lodging	Type	Description (Includ	e I valles of Oue	363)	Illouit
201181118					
Meals					
Fuel					
Other					
Special N	otes:		- Su	btotal:	
			Total with M	ileage:	
				FR	OSTBURG STATE UNIVERSITY
					UNDATION, INC.
PAYEE	TITLE	Di	ATE		NATURE APPROVAL
				(Ac	count Director)